
NWCWD COST OF SERVICE STUDY:  
WATER CHARGES AND PLANT 

INVESTMENT FEE
 MORE RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

GEORGE OAMEK, HONEY CREEK RESOURCES, INC.

OCTOBER 9, 2023



2023 COST OF STUDY UPDATE

• PRELIMINARY RESULTS WERE PRESENTED IN SEPT. BOARD MEETING

• RESULTS ARE STILL PRELIMINARY PENDING BOARD AND STAFF REVIEW

• MODIFICATIONS WILL DEPEND ON THEIR INPUT AND THE FINAL MASTER PLAN

• DOCUMENT DRAFTED BUT WITHOUT RECOMMENDATIONS

• FOLLOW-UP ON ISSUES FROM SEPTEMBER

• DISCUSSION OF CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS AND POLICIES



CALCULATED COST OF SERVICE RATES

Current water 

charges

Baseline cost-of-

service water rates, 

2023 update

Baseline cost-of-

service water rates, 

2023 updated since 

Sept. Board mtg.

Residential customers $4.44/1,000 gal $6.50/1,000 gal $6.50/1,000 gal

Commercial and 

industrial

$4.44/1,000 gal $4.30/1,000 gal $4.30/1,000 gal

Towns (average) $3.33/1,000 gal $4.40/1,000 gal 

average

$4.71/1,000 gal 

average

Plant Investment fee $20,250/tap District

$15,100/tap Town

$22,650/tap District

$16,700/tap Town

$22,650/tap District

$16,700/tap Town



CALCULATED VOLUME CHARGE FOR TOWNS, BASED ON 
THEIR HISTORIC PEAKING FACTORS ($/1000 GAL)

Town of Windsor 4.31$                
Town of Eaton 4.90$                

Town of Severance 4.60$                
Town of Ault 5.04$                

Town of Pierce 4.31$                
N. Colo Water Assoc #A-2110 4.90$                

Town of Nunn 4.90$                
Simple average 4.71$                



ASSUMPTIONS AND POLICIES

• PI SURCHARGE:  A BASIS FOR IT AND PROPOSED REVISION

• ALLOCATION OF SURCHARGE REVENUES

• ESTIMATE OF FUTURE TAP SALES

• ALLOCATION OF COSTS BETWEEN GROWTH AND CURRENT CUSTOMERS

• ALLOCATION OF COSTS TO TOWNS

• FUTURE WATER PURCHASES

• REMAINING CAPACITY IN THE SYSTEM



PLANT INVESTMENT SURCHARGE

• CURRENTLY AT $3.95/1,000 GALLONS, UNCHANGED FOR SEVERAL YEARS, WITH UNKNOWN SOURCE

• PLANT INVESTMENT FEE (PI) SHOULD BE BASED ON INFRASTRUCTURE EXPENDITURES

• TRANSLATE PI FEE TO ANNUAL VOLUME CHARGE

• PROPOSE CALCULATING PI SURCHARGE SIMILAR TO WATER ALLOCATION SURCHARGE

• AMORTIZE $20,250/TAP USING THE SAME ASSUMPTIONS AS THE WATER SURCHARGE AND DIVIDE BY ANNUAL 

TAP WATER ALLOCATION

• RESULTING PI SURCHARGE WOULD BE $6.25/1,000 GALLONS

• PI SURCHARGE WOULD CHANGE IN PROPORTION TO PI FEE



ALLOCATION OF SURCHARGE REVENUES

• HISTORICALLY CREDITED TO ALL RATEPAYERS

• WITH INCREASES IN WATER (AND PI) SURCHARGES, THIS BECOMES A MAJOR SOURCE OF REVENUE, 

ALTHOUGH POSSIBLY TEMPORARY

• MOVING FORWARD, THESE REVENUES ASSUMED TO BE SPLIT EVENLY BETWEEN DISTRICT 

RATEPAYERS AND CAPITAL FUND

• CHANGING THIS ALLOCATION CAN HAVE MAJOR IMPACTS ON RATES (+ OR -) AND CAPITAL FUND, AT 

LEAST IN NEAR TERM

• THESE REVENUES ARE CURRENTLY ASSUMED TO BE REDUCED OVER TIME WITH SUCCESS OF 

COMMERCIAL PROGRAM



FUTURE WATER PURCHASES

• THE DISTRICT PLANS TO SPEND $6 MILLION PER YEAR ON RAW WATER OVER THE NEXT 10 

YEARS

• FINANCED THROUGH RATES

• IF THE COMMERCIAL PROGRAM IS SUCCESSFUL, WATER PURCHASES CAN BE REDUCED

• A 50% REDUCTION IN WATER PURCHASES IS ASSUMED, MOSTLY TOWARDS END OF PLANNING 

PERIOD

• SAVINGS APPLIED TO THE CAPITAL RESERVE RATHER THAN RATES



ESTIMATES OF FUTURE TAP SALES

• CURRENT PI FEES ARE $20,250/TAP; REVISION IS PENDING

• ASSUMPTION ABOUT TAP SALES:

• SCENARIO 1:  DISTRICT SELLS ABOUT 285-290 TAPS PER YEAR THROUGH 2028

• SCENARIO 2:  DISTRICT SELLS ABOUT 150 TAPS PER YEAR THROUGH 2032 AND BEYOND

• IN BOTH SCENARIOS, ABOUT 1,100 TOTAL TOWN TAPS ADDED

• 3 LARGEST TOWNS ASSUMED TO ACCOUNT FOR ABOUT 300 TAPS EACH THROUGH 2032 



SCENARIO 1

• WITH CURRENT TAP FEES AND SURCHARGES, CAPITAL RESERVES ARE EXHAUSTED IN 2032 

(ABOUT $1.5 MILLION IN THE RED)

• INCREASING TAP FEES TO PRELIMINARY REVISED LEVEL AND MINOR INCREASE IN PI 

SURCHARGE RESULTS IN A POSITIVE CAPITAL RESERVE BALANCE IN 2032 (BARELY)



SCENARIO 2

• WITH CURRENT TAP FEES AND SURCHARGES, CAPITAL RESERVES ARE EXHAUSTED IN 2031 AND 

DEFICIT INCREASES TO ABOUT $5.7 MILLION

• INCREASING TAP FEES TO PRELIMINARY REVISED LEVEL AND INCREASING PI SURCHARGE TO 

$6.25/1,000 GALLONS RESULTS IN A POSITIVE CAPITAL RESERVE BALANCE IN 2032 (BARELY)



FUTURE TAP SALES

• AVOIDING A CAPITAL FUND DEFICIT

• TAP FEE REVISION

• ADJUSTING WATER ALLOCATION AND PI SURCHARGES

• DO NOT REDUCE FUTURE WATER RATES IF WATER ACQUISITIONS ARE REDUCED (INSTEAD, 

CONTRIBUTE THESE FUNDS TO CAPITAL RESERVES)

• CAPITAL RESERVES ARE INCREASED IF TAP SALES EXCEED THE SCENARIOS,  

• DISTRICT SHOULD HAVE CAPACITY TO TAKE ON MORE TAPS

• KEEP THE TOWNS IN THE SYSTEM TO MAINTAIN PI REVENUES



ALLOCATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
EXPENDITURES

• ALLOCATION BETWEEN GROWTH COSTS AND EXISTING CUSTOMERS

• WITH THE EXCEPTION OF RAW WATER, MOST MAJOR CIP EXPENDITURES ARE TO ACCOMMODATE 

GROWTH

• ALLOCATION BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND TOWNS

• TOWNS DO NOT PAY FOR RAW WATER AND PEAK HOUR STORAGE

• REVIEWING THESE ALLOCATIONS WITH THE DISTRICT



NEXT STEPS

• FINALIZE ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING:

• GROWTH IN TAP SALES, 

• SUCCESS OF COMMERCIAL PROGRAM

• ALLOCATION OF SURCHARGE REVENUES

• REVISED PI FEE CALCULATION; PI SURCHARGE

• RATE AND FEE RECOMMENDATIONS

• POTENTIAL PHASING OF RATE CHANGES

• FINAL DOCUMENT/BOARD AND STAFF APPROVAL



QUESTIONS?















































































Honey Creek Resources, Inc.     
 

1 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: ERIC RECKENTINE, NWCWD 
     
FROM: GEORGE OAMEK 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 

SUBJECT: WATER AND PLANT INVESTMENT SURCHARGES 

 

Water Allocation Surcharge and a Proposed Basis and Revision of the 

Plant Investment (PI) Surcharge 
District customers have an expected maximum level of water and infrastructure utilization, termed their 

allocation, which is defined either by their customer class or individually.  For instance, full tap, ¾ tap, 

and ½ tap residential customers are expected to use no more than 0.70 acre-feet, 0.525 acre-feet, or 

0.35 acre-feet of water, respectively, over the course of a year.  Usage in excess of these limits results in a 

surcharge for each increment over these limits, measured in 1,000 gallons.  Commercial customers, such 

as dairies, have an expected level of water and system capacity usage, measured in full tap equivalents, 

which are specified based on the new customers’ expected usage.   

The water and plant investment (PI) surcharges are primarily due to chronic usage beyond water and PI 

allocations by growing dairies and, to a lesser degree, residential customers with extensive landscapes.  

These surcharges, expressed in dollars per 1,000 gallons, are added to the existing water charge when 

the customer exceeds their annual water and/or PI allocations. 

Historically, the water allocation surcharge has been $2.00/1,000 gallons and the PI surcharge $3.95.  

When and how these levels were determined is unknown.  Aggressively growing usage in excess of 

allocations by dairies has provided convincing evidence that the surcharges were too low to provide 

incentives to reduce water usage or increase allocations.  At $2.00, the water surcharge appeared to 

have the opposite impact. 

Water Allocation Surcharge 
In 2021, the District hired Headwaters Corporation to develop a water allocation surcharge.  Using a cost-

based method, a revised surcharge was proposed based on the market value of C-BT units at the time, 

approximately $60,000, or about $86,000 per acre-foot.  This translated to over $18.51/1,000 gallons 

when expressed on an annual, unit basis.  The Board determined that this surcharge would apply to new 

dairies to the system but did not apply this level of surcharge on a system-wide basis at this time 

because such an increase was considered untenable.   However, recognizing that something had to be 

done to reduce the excess usage problem, the District decided to approach the surcharge increase in 

three stages, with the first stage being $6.00/1,000 gallons.  This approach was approved and the current 

water allocation surcharge is $6.00/1,000 gallons.  It is still uncertain whether this increase has resulted 

in significant changes in commercial water usage.   



Honey Creek Resources, Inc.     
 

2 
 

In early 2023, Honey Creek Resources updated Headwaters water surcharge calculations with more 

recent C-BT market sales, which resulted in a proposed surcharge of $22.52.1  No action has yet been 

taken to implement this revision into the current water allocation surcharge.   

The District has currently developed a plan in which large commercial users with excessive over-usage 

will be limited to their 2022 historical usage level.  Up to this historical usage level, the customer would 

pay the existing $6.00 surcharge, as they currently do.  However, usage in excess of historical levels 

would be billed at a level equal to the current water rate plus the $18.51/1,000 gallons (or $22.52) level 

represented by the market value of a C-BT unit. 

Plant Investment Surcharge 
No documentation supports the level of the current PI surcharge although intuition suggests that it’s 

cost-based.  Lacking documentation, a cost-based basis for a PI fee is proposed here.  Desirable 

characteristics that a proposed fee should incorporate include the following: 

1. A rational basis.  The PI surcharge should be rooted in some measure of infrastructure cost since 

it is intended to reduce discourage infrastructure utilization beyond the customers’ current 

agreements.   

2. Utilize readily available, reliable data, or data that can at least be obtained and verified. 

3. Be simple in nature.  That is, be easily understood and depend on a minimum number of steps 

and calculations. 

Base the Surcharge on the Current Plant Investment Fee 
This method was suggested near the end of the aforementioned memo from Honey Creek Resources, 

Inc. and involves calculating the PI surcharge in the same manner as the water allocation fee.  However, 

rather than basing the value on a C-BT unit, the PI fee itself is the unit of value.   

Therefore, the current PI fee, $20,250 per tap, would be amortized over the same period of time (20 

years) and at the same discount rate (3.5%) as the water allocation fee.   

• This amortization results in an annual cost of $1,425 per unit, $2,035 per acre-foot.  Based on 

0.70 acre-feet per year annual usage per tap, this translates to a surcharge of $6.25 per 1,000 

gallons, compared to the current fee of $3.95 per 1,000 gallons.  This surcharge would change 

over time in proportion to the PI fee. 

Increasing the PI surcharge from $3.95 per 1,000 to $6.25 would reflect the increase in the PI fees that 

have occurred over the last three years.   

 
1 Draft memo from Honey Creek Resources, Inc. to Eric Reckentine, March 3, 2023.   



1 
 

Draft - North Weld County Water District 2024 Budget Memo 
To: Board of Directors North Weld County Water District 

From: Eric Reckentine 
October 9, 2023 

Revenue  

Total district water usage for North weld County Water District (District) is projected to increase 0.5% 

annually for the next 5 years from 2022 water usage.  

• Commercial water usage is projected as flat to 2022 volumes for the next 5 years. 

• Wholesale Water Accounts are projected at an approximate .25% water usage increase annually 

for the next 5 years from 2022 usages and 

• The three towns associated with the Group treatment plant usage volumes are projected as flat 

perpetually starting in 2028.  

• District residential water usage is projected at an approximate 1.5% annual water usage 

increase for the next 5 years from 2022 usages. 

Total meter sale revenue is budgeted to increase from approximately $18.1 million in the 2023 budget 

to $20.8 million in 2024 budget and $.85 million less to 2022 actual revenues.  The 2023 forecast 

projects approximately $17.2 million in metered revenues.  Water allocation and plant investment 

surcharges are budgeted at $6 million annually for the next five years. The district is projected to see 

approximately $4 million in total contributions which is flat to 2023 forecast with budgeted sales of 

approximately 150 meters, $1.5 million in interest and miscellaneous revenues with a total revenue 

projection of $26.3 million. 

• The rate increase projections for all customer classes are at 5% for the next five years. 

• Towns out of compliance with storage requirements are projected at residential rates for 2024. 

• Water allocation surcharges are projected at $6.00/1000 gallons. Recommend raising water 

allocation surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

• Plant investment surcharges are projected at $3.85/1000 gallons. Recommend increasing PI 

surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

• Plant Investment sales are projected at 150 meters sold for 2024- and 175-meter sales annually 

for the following 5 years.  

• Cash in Lieu sales are projected at 3 units in 2024 and at 10 units for the following five years at 

$73,500. 

• Plant Investment Fee is currently projected at $20,500 per PI not counting distance fee. 

Recommend increasing PI surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

Expenses  

Operations Maintenance and Administration 2024 budget is projected at approximately $10.7 million 

which is approximately $1 million increase from 2023 budget and forecast.  

• Labor costs are projected to increase approximately $0.5 million from 2023 to 2024 which 

equates to approximately 20%, that includes a proposed 5% employee cost of living increase, 

insurance increases and mid-year increases 2023.  

• The District anticipates acquiring two replacement fleet vehicles in 2024 and dump truck.  



2 
 

• The District has budgeted $30,000 for Web Site Design. 

• Repaving Project for Home Office Budgeted at $100,000 

• Fiber Optic Line Installation Budgeted at $125,000 

• Solider Canyon Filter Plant treatment costs rate increase of $100,000 for 2024, SCWTA budget 

memo is attached as draft final to be attached for October meeting.   

• Increase in material costs projected at double for 2024 from 2023-line replacement and repair 

and meter repairs O&M costs increase of $0.5 million dollars. 

Capital improvement project costs for 2024 are projected at approximately $29.5 million compared to 

2023 budget of $27.8 million.  Forecast for 2023 is capital improvement projects is projected at $25.5 

million to date. Capital Improvements project costs for 2023 and 2024 are approximately 30% greater 

than original engineering projections 2021/2022 due to rapid increase in material costs. The anticipated 

capital improvement ten-year forecast is approximately $200 million that includes approximately $60 

million in water rights acquisition.  

The District is forecasted to complete the following capital improvement projects in 2023: 

• Constructed approximately 1.5 of 2 miles Eaton Pipeline Phase II at $5.3 million dollars. 

• Construction of the Greeley/ NW Harmoney Interconnect 24- inch Pipeline at $1.5 million dollars 

• Construction NEWT III Transmission Line- Timberline Crossing and Permitting, Pipe and Property 

Acquisition, and 1st Phase of Construction at $8.5 million dollars. 

• Acquisition of Water Rights at $7 million dollars 

• Rehabilitation Project for Tanks 1A, 5B and 7 at $1 million dollars CIP and O&M 

• Larimer #2 Headgate Construction Project Overland Ponds 

• Longs Peak WSSC Recharge Structure  

• Emergency Generator Backup Power, Nunn PS, PS-1 and Summit View  

• These costs do not reflect reimbursement from ELCO for NEWT III and City of Greeley for 

Interconnect materials as per the IGA – approximately $1.5 million dollars. 

Capital Improvement System Projects for 2024 

• North Weld East Larimer County (NEWT) III transmission line permitting, and construction 

projected cost of $8.5 million for 2023 and $13.5 million for 2024. 

• Eaton Pipeline Phase 2 two mile 30-inch distribution construction projected cost of $5.3 million 

for 2023, anticipating winter of 2024 construction costs of $2.5 million. 

• Greeley and North Weld Interconnect projected cost of $1.5 million for pump station acquisition 

and construction in 2024 

• Tank Rehabilitation Program for Tank 4 and Tank 5 at $1 million  

• Tank 1 to CR 78, 16-inch distribution pipeline upsizing project projected start 2024 total project 

cost of approximately $9 million with $2 million dollars in 2024 

• Weld County Zone 1 Transmission Line to Tank 1 Site project starts in 2024 and project cost of 

$9 million with $ 2 million dollars budgeted for 2024.  

• Tank 1C Design and Construction project cost $7 million with 2025 construction. Engineering 

and Design in 2024 

• Line 1 Interconnect Project at $500,000 

• Timnath 36-inch Line Lowering projected cost $1 million with ½ to be paid by Timnath. 



3 
 

• Line replacement projects – Highway 85, Woods Lake, County RD 84  

Capital Improvement Raw Water Projects for 2024  

• Raw water district drought supply acquisition project projected at $6 million.  

• Water Supply and Storage Company Structures projected cost of $100,000 

• Reservoir Pumping Costs of $200,000. 

• Legal and Engineering cost of approximately $200,000 Change Case and Oppositions  

Master Planning  

• Finalize Regional Master Plan  

• Cost of Service Study Update 2023 dependent on Revised Water Service Agreement.  

• System Pressurization Study for analyses of pressurization of the transmission system at the 

treatment plant to be managed by SCWTA. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Rating Expansion to 65 to 67 MGD be managed by SCWTA projected 

at $60,000 for 2024. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Master Plan to be managed by SCWTA projected at $250,000 for 

2024. 

Total expenditures for 2024 are projected at $44.6 million dollars.  Funds available at end of 2024 are 

projected at $16.9 million dollars of which $5.5 million dollars is depreciation reserve fund with an 

additional $7 million in operational reserve fund.  

Previous Five-Year Financial Summary 2018 to 2022 

From 2018 to 2022, the District has received in approximate figures $74 million dollars in operational 

revenue, has received $61 million in non-operation revenue, has obtained debt proceeds in total of $51 

million dollars with approximately 6 million in miscellaneous incomes, and has maintained 

approximately $10 million dollars in operational and replacement reserve funds for a total revenue of 

$192 million dollars ($141 million dollars without debt proceeds),  

From 2018 to 2022,  the District has acquired approximately 1,300 acre-feet of new water supplies at a 

cost of approximately $49 million dollars, averaging $38,000 per acre-foot and averaging approximately 

$10 million annually in water acquisitions investment, constructed approximately $38 million dollars of 

system improvements, averaging about $8 million dollars annually to serve growth and maintain reliable 

service for a total capital improvement expenditure of $86 million dollars, has spent $40  million dollars 

in operations and maintenance (O&M), or about $8 million per year, has paid $16 million in debt service, 

for total expenditures of approximately $143 million.  Specific projects include: 

• Solider Canyon Treatment Plant Expansion from 45 to 60 MGD. 

• Line 1 replacement project and 48-inch upsizing.  

• Pump Station 1 upgrade. 

• Old Eaton Pipeline, 16-inch line replacement and 20-inch upsizing. 

• Emergency Backup Power Summit View. 

• Eaton Pipeline Project 2 miles Phase 1. 

• Pump Station Rebuild Summit View. 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 4. 



4 
 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 6. 

• Mason Street Interconnect City of Greeley 60-inch to NEWT III. 

• Horse tooth Operation Project Hansen Pump Back Station. 

• 2nd Master Meters to Severance.  

• 2nd Master Meter to Windsor.  

• Master Meter City of Greeley 

• Town of Nunn Pump Station Upsize and Replacement.  

• Wild wing Irrigation Raw Water Line. 

• Purchase Contract for Knox Pit Reservoir Project - Overland Ponds 

• Acquisition of River Bluffs Reservoir Storage Project. 

• Acquisition of Overland Ponds – Cells 4 and 5. 

• Development of two Return Flow Structures for Native Rights.  

• 5- year CDPHE Sanitary Survey. 

• American Water Infrastructure Act Survey and Emergency Response System Upgrades.  

• Mill Levy Ballot Initiative.  

• Emergency Power SCADA. 

Policies  

The District over the course of 5 years has developed or modified approximately 20 policies, and 

updated manuals and protocols related to updated design criteria, maintenance program, safety, 

employment manuals and polices, development review procedures, drought triggers, finance and 

reserve fund policies, regulatory compliance manual and policies related to back flow and cross 

connection devices, board of director manual and plant investment and water dedication policies. 

The following are considered by District Management to be key policy changes that have had significant 

impact on maintaining district solvency: 

• Finance Policies for Reserve and Depreciation Funds.  

• Elimination of the Conservation Blue Tap Program. 

• Raw Water Dedication Policy Change from 100% Cash in Lieu to 100% Raw Water Dedication. 

• Drought Trigger Policies and Surcharges. 

• Flow Control Program for Commercial Customers.  

• Mortarium Policies Temporarily Limiting New Growth.  

• Elimination of the Water Allocation and Plant Investment Reinvestment Program.  

• Residential Meter Over Usage Policy and Surcharge 

Management Recommendations:   

1.  A 5% rate increase  

2. Increasing the plant investment fee to reflect the Honey Creek recommendation per PI not 

including distance fee. 

3. Increasing CIL to $73,500  

4. Increasing the Plant Investment and Water Allocation Surcharge to Honey Creek 

recommendation. 



5 
 

 

 

 

  

Forecast

2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Forecast 2024 Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Revenues
Total Operating Revenue 21,708,287$           18,189,459$            17,193,431$       20,867,804$       21,642,563$       22,451,083$         23,302,799$          23,700,015$          24,636,199$         

Debt Proceeds 34,615,000$           -$                       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                    

Total Non-Operating Revenue 1,026,000$            185,081$                1,502,000$         1,537,637$         738,390$            739,157$              739,941$               740,739$               741,554$             

Total Contributions 7,134,545$            4,174,964$             3,986,224$         3,895,784$         5,299,500$         5,313,490$           5,327,759$            5,342,315$            5,357,161$          

Total Revenues 64,483,832$           22,624,387$            22,681,655$       26,377,605$       27,758,361$       28,583,196$         29,451,554$          29,865,745$          30,819,244$         

Expenditures
Administrative 2,163,522$            2,147,230$             2,065,250$         2,058,589$         2,105,146$         2,152,796$           2,201,565$            2,251,481$            2,302,572$          

Operational 6,622,341$            7,165,217$             7,642,136$         8,628,628$         8,829,912$         8,390,234$           8,583,077$            8,985,824$            8,760,815$          

Debt Service 2,907,375$            5,127,288$             4,654,000$         4,420,825$         4,421,488$         4,416,925$           4,422,250$            4,422,238$            4,417,000$          

Water Enterprise Fund 2020 Bond 477,288$               473,288$                473,288$            474,175$            474,838$            470,275$              475,600$               475,588$               470,350$             

Capital Improvements 12,223,970$           28,239,700$            25,589,700$       29,505,000$       22,660,000$       18,460,000$         13,060,000$          13,610,000$          14,310,000$         

Total Expenditures 24,394,496$           42,679,435$            40,424,374$       44,613,042$       38,016,546$       33,419,955$         28,266,892$          29,269,544$          29,790,387$         

Earnings 40,089,336$           (20,055,048)$           (17,742,719)$      (18,235,437)$      (10,258,185)$      (4,836,759)$          1,184,662$            596,202$               1,028,857$          

Funds Available (carry over prior to depreciation) 62,450,588$           40,227,855$            43,879,808$       24,799,749$       13,680,049$       7,964,545$           8,252,887$            7,934,842$            8,031,168$          

Depreciation 828,061$               844,622$                844,622$            861,515$            878,745$            896,320$              914,246$               932,531$               951,182$             

Funds Available 61,622,527$           39,383,233$            43,035,186$       23,938,234$       12,801,304$       7,068,225$           7,338,641$            7,002,311$            7,079,987$          

Reserve Fund -$7 million 7,000,000$            7,000,000$             7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$           7,000,000$            7,000,000$            7,000,000$          

Fund Avaialble minus reserve fund 54,622,527$           32,383,233$            36,035,186$       16,938,234$       5,801,304$         68,225$                338,641$               2,311$                  79,987$               

Depreciation Reserve Fund 3,857,124$            4,685,185$             4,685,185$         5,529,807$         6,391,322$         7,270,067$           8,166,387$            9,080,633$            10,013,164$         



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BREAKDOWN 2024 Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

3000 Revenue 26,377,605$        27,758,361$      28,583,196$    29,451,554$      29,865,745$     30,819,244$    

3100 Operating 20,867,804$        21,642,563$      22,451,083$    23,302,799$      23,700,015$     24,636,199$    

3200 Non-Operating 1,500,845$          700,862$            700,879$         700,897$           700,914$          700,933$         

3300 New Service 3,895,784$          5,299,500$         5,313,490$      5,327,759$        5,342,315$       5,357,161$      

3400 Ag-Water Income (Non-Op) 18,571$               18,943$              19,321$            19,708$             20,102$             20,504$            

3500 Miscellaneous (Non-Op) 18,221$               18,585$              18,957$            19,336$             19,723$             20,117$            

3700    Debt Proceeds

2009 Bond Revenue (included in operating revenue) -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

4000 8,628,628$          8,829,912$         8,390,234$      8,583,077$        8,985,824$       8,760,815$      

4100 Water 3,994,485$          4,139,214$         3,844,576$      3,955,598$        4,274,622$       3,963,940$      

4200 Personnel Operations 2,042,823$          2,093,731$         2,145,912$      2,199,398$        2,254,220$       2,310,413$      

4400 Operation & Maintenance 2,183,198$          2,180,682$         1,975,136$      1,994,979$        2,015,218$       2,035,863$      

4500 Engineering -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

4600 Electricity 184,722$             188,416$            192,185$         196,028$           199,949$          203,948$         

4700 Communications 51,000$               52,020$              53,060$            54,122$             55,204$             56,308$            

4800 Insurance 172,400$             175,848$            179,365$         182,952$           186,611$          190,344$         

4900 Miscellaneous -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

5000 2,058,589$          2,105,146$         2,152,796$      2,201,565$        2,251,481$       2,302,572$      

5100 Personnel - Administrative 538,541$             554,697$            571,338$         588,479$           606,133$          624,317$         

5200 Payroll Taxes 144,068$             146,949$            149,888$         152,886$           155,944$          159,062$         

5300 Heath Insurance 61,200$               62,424$              63,672$            64,946$             66,245$             67,570$            

5400 Office Utilities 211,907$             216,145$            220,468$         224,878$           229,375$          233,963$         

5500 Office Expenses 204,939$             209,037$            213,218$         217,483$           221,832$          226,269$         

5600 Professional Fees 787,934$             803,693$            819,767$         836,162$           852,885$          869,943$         

5900 Miscellaneous 110,000$             112,200$            114,444$         116,733$           119,068$          121,449$         

6000 29,505,000$        22,660,000$      18,460,000$    13,060,000$      13,610,000$     14,310,000$    

6200 Storage Tanks 1,000,000.00$    7,000,000.00$   750,000.00$    1,000,000.00$  -$                   -$                  

6300 Pump Stations 75,000.00$          -$                     -$                  1,500,000.00$  2,250,000.00$  4,000,000.00$ 

6400 Equipment 220,000$             100,000$            -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

6500 System 21,700,000$        9,000,000$         11,200,000$    4,000,000$        4,800,000$       4,750,000$      

6600 Water Rights/Storage  $         6,330,000  $        6,380,000  $      6,330,000  $       6,380,000  $       6,380,000  $      5,380,000 

6700 Land / Easements 180,000$             180,000$            180,000$         180,000$           180,000$          180,000$         

6900 Office Equipment -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

7000 4,420,825$          4,421,488$         4,416,925$      4,422,250$        4,422,238$       4,417,000$      

7200 Interest / Principle 4,420,825$          4,421,488$         4,416,925$      4,422,250$        4,422,238$       4,417,000$      

7400 Interest Expense Other

7800 Depreciation

7900 Amortization

Water Enterprise Fund 474,175$             474,838$            470,275$         475,600$           475,588$          470,350$         

Total Expense 44,613,042$        38,016,546$      33,419,955$    28,266,892$      29,269,544$     29,790,387$    

North Weld County Water District

2024 Budget 

Bond Issue 

Operational Expense 

Administrative

Capital Improvements



Last exported to pdf from ArcGIS Pro by brobeson on 8/1/2023, 1:47 PM.

1252 Commerce Drive
Laramie, WY 82070
www.trihydro.com

(P) 307/745.7474 (F) 307/745.7729

File: 2_CIP_2023

\\T
R

IH
Y

D
R

O
.C

O
M

\C
LI

E
N

T
S

\IT
O

N
\N

W
C

W
D

\G
IS

\M
A

P
P

IN
G

\2
02

3_
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

\N
W

C
W

D
_2

02
3_

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
.A

P
R

X

Date: 8/1/23Scale: 1" = 3 MilesChecked By: JGDrawn By: BR

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
LUCERNE, COLORADO

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FIGURE  2

0 3 Miles


EXPLANATION

k9 STORAGE TANK

PUMP STATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) LOCATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) EXTENT

12" OR LARGER WATER LINE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY

EXCLUDED FROM DISTRICT

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

NEWT 3 Alignment (42")

Greeley - NWCWD Interconnect (24")

Highway 85 Replacement (4")

CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line (6")

Eaton Phase II (30")

Zone 1 Alignment (42")

Eaton Phase III (30")

Zone 1 Utilities

Timnath Culvert Crossing (36")

24''

24
''

30''

12''

12''

30''

16
''

12''

14
''

16''

12''

12''
24
''

24''

12''

16
''

14
''

16''

16
''

16
''

12''

16
''

24''

12
''

18''

12
''

16
''

12
'' 12''

12
''

12
''

12''

42''

20'' 12''16''

16''

16''

12
''

36''

12'' 12''

T-2

T-1A

T-6

T-4

T-5N

T-7

T-1B

T-5S

PS-4

PS-1
PS-7

PS-6

Summit View

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA, Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

DRAFT



SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT 
AUTHORITY 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

To: Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Kempton, P.E., CWP - SCWTA Manager 
 
Date:  October 5th, 2023 
 
RE:  FINAL - 2024 Budget for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority  
  
The intent of this memo is to present the proposed draft Operational & Maintenance and 
Renewal & Replacement expenditure budgets for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment 
Authority (SCWTA) for the fiscal year 2024.  In addition to treatment plant expenses, the 
SCWTA budget includes funding for the Tri-District’s Water Resources personnel. Due to the 
unusual summer weather and subsequent lower water demands in 2023, the calculations used 
for 2024 District per gallon cost contributions are based on the assumed increase over 2022 
actual water production, as detailed in Table 1 below.  The fiscal year for the SCWTA budget is 
January 1 through December 31. 
 
Table 1 – Historic and projected water usage (MG) 
District  2021 

Actual 
2022 
Actual 

2023* 
Projected 
Actual 

2024 
Projected 

Assumed 2024 
increase/(decrease) 
over 2022 

East Larimer 
County 

1,449 1,540 1,232 1,638 6.3% 

Fort Collins 
Loveland 

3,167 3,336 2,668 3,610 8.2% 

North Weld 
County 

3,683 3,514 2,811 3,531 0.5% 

Tri-Districts 
Totals 

8,299 8,391 6,712 8,779 4.6% 

*Assumed 20% decrease in summer demands 
 
The following documents are included to provide details for the 2024 Budget.  
 

A. 2024 Budget – The budget summarizes the proposed revenues, expenditures, and reserve 
account fund projections. It also summarizes the funding responsibility for each District.  

B. Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Summary – The attached worksheet lists the major 
categories in the O&M Budget. The operations and maintenance summary is divided into six 
major categories.   

a. Personnel Services 
b. Professional Services 
c. Utilities 
d. Contractual Services 
e. Commodities 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

2 | P a g e  
 

f. Repair and Maintenance  
 

C. O&M Expense Detail Worksheet – The attached worksheet provides additional detail about 
planned O&M Expenses for 2024. 

D. Renewal & Replacement Fund Summary – This worksheet lists the upcoming Renewal and 
Replacement (R&R) Fund projects planned for 2024.  
 
General Review of 2023 
 
Treated Water Production  
The annual plant production for 2023 is projected to be 6.7 billion gallons. To date, the peak 
daily plant production in 2023 was 46.55 million gallons, recorded on July 26, 2023. For 
comparison, the annual plant production and peak daily production for 2022 were 8.39 billion 
gallons and 49.76 MGD,  respectively. 
 
Water Quality 
Treated water produced at Soldier Canyon Filter Plant continues to be rated as very high-quality 
water.  All Environmental Protection Agency, (EPA) and Colorado Department of Public Health 
and Environment, (CDPHE), Safe Drinking Water regulations were met, with the exception of 
one external lab reporting error. In most cases, water quality far exceeded regulatory 
requirements.  
  
Water Quality / Regulatory / Watershed  
SCWTA continues to support monitoring of the Poudre River watershed in conjunction with 
regional partners. 
 
2024 Proposed Budget 
 
Operations & Maintenance Budget 
The proposed O&M budget for 2024 is $6,426,851. This is an increase of 4.5% from the 2023 
O&M budget of $6,151,833.  
 
Details of expense categories, proposed 2024 costs, and 2024 over 2023 budget % changes are 
listed below. 
 

1. Personnel Services ($3,347,631) – 2.0% increase. 
An assumed wage increase of 5% is included in the 2024 budget. Increases are primarily due to 
health Insurance and personnel costs.   
 

2. Professional Services ($73,465) – 37% decrease. 
Decreases in legal and engineering services. 
 

3. Utilities ($167,937)– 46.7% increase. 
Increase due to higher electricity and natural gas costs. 
 

4. Contractual Services ($572,483) – 12.2% increase. 
Increases in liability insurance, and PVP Enterprise indirect costs/capital projects. 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
5. Commodities ($1,515,619) – 8.7% increase. 

Increased cost of water treatment chemicals.  
 

6. Facilities Repair and Maintenance ($749,716) – 2.0% increase. 
Increase due to project selection. Proposed projects for 2024 include: 

 
• PLC Controls improvements. 
• Painting Pipes.  
• Replace House Water PVC Piping. 
• Replace Surface Wash Pipes.  
• Replace Filter Actuators.  
• Upgrade Filter Consoles.   
• Replace Redwood Floc Walls - Annual Program.  
• Replace filters 1-20 surface wash PVC - Annual Program.  
• Filter Air Solenoid Valve replacement program - Annual Program.  
• Tank 2 - Spot coating repairs.  
• Yard Butterfly Valve Actuator Replacement - Annual Program. 

 
Renewal and Replacement (R&R) Fund Budget 
The proposed R&R Fund budget for 2024 is $1,936,738. This is a decrease of 3.4% from the 
2023 R&R budget. Proposed 2024 R&R projects are listed below:  
 

1. New Hydrocarbon Analyzer for Poudre River and new Lab TOC Analyzer - $95,000. 
New analyzer at the PVP Sed Basin to detect gasoline spills in the Poudre River. 

2. Upgrade SCADA operating system - $260,000. 
Upgrade the iFix SCADA operating interface. 

3. Upgrade Chlorine Dioxide system - $400,000. 
Replace the older, smaller 195-gallon tank with a new 800-gallon tank, install new generators, 
and piping. 

4. Replace MCC - $568,000. 
Replace the main Plant Motor Control Center. 

5. Replace Sedimentation Sludge collectors - Basins 1-4 - Annual Program- $100,000. 
Replace sludge collectors – phase over several years until complete. 

6. Vehicle replacement - $85,000. 
Replace two 15-year-old maintenance trucks. 

7. Replace Mud Valves - Floc Basin Drains - $32,000. 
Replace original mud valves. 

8. Replace NWCWD 20-inch meter - $280,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 2 – Summary of 2024 District costs 
 East Larimer County Fort Collins Loveland North Weld County 

Fixed O&M $1,124,350 $1,888,504 $1,904,485 

Variable O&M $281,247 $620,724 $607,141 

Renewal and 
Replacement $442,835 $743,804 $750,099 

Total $1,848,832 $3,253,032 $3,261,724 

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2023 Budget 2.77% 3.34% 1.69% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT 
AUTHORITY 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

To: Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Kempton, P.E., CWP - SCWTA Manager 
 
Date:  October 5th, 2023 
 
RE:  FINAL - 2024 Budget for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority  
  
The intent of this memo is to present the proposed draft Operational & Maintenance and 
Renewal & Replacement expenditure budgets for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment 
Authority (SCWTA) for the fiscal year 2024.  In addition to treatment plant expenses, the 
SCWTA budget includes funding for the Tri-District’s Water Resources personnel. Due to the 
unusual summer weather and subsequent lower water demands in 2023, the calculations used 
for 2024 District per gallon cost contributions are based on the assumed increase over 2022 
actual water production, as detailed in Table 1 below.  The fiscal year for the SCWTA budget is 
January 1 through December 31. 
 
Table 1 – Historic and projected water usage (MG) 
District  2021 

Actual 
2022 
Actual 

2023* 
Projected 
Actual 

2024 
Projected 

Assumed 2024 
increase/(decrease) 
over 2022 

East Larimer 
County 

1,449 1,540 1,232 1,638 6.3% 

Fort Collins 
Loveland 

3,167 3,336 2,668 3,610 8.2% 

North Weld 
County 

3,683 3,514 2,811 3,531 0.5% 

Tri-Districts 
Totals 

8,299 8,391 6,712 8,779 4.6% 

*Assumed 20% decrease in summer demands 
 
The following documents are included to provide details for the 2024 Budget.  
 

A. 2024 Budget – The budget summarizes the proposed revenues, expenditures, and reserve 
account fund projections. It also summarizes the funding responsibility for each District.  

B. Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Summary – The attached worksheet lists the major 
categories in the O&M Budget. The operations and maintenance summary is divided into six 
major categories.   

a. Personnel Services 
b. Professional Services 
c. Utilities 
d. Contractual Services 
e. Commodities 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

2 | P a g e  
 

f. Repair and Maintenance  
 

C. O&M Expense Detail Worksheet – The attached worksheet provides additional detail about 
planned O&M Expenses for 2024. 

D. Renewal & Replacement Fund Summary – This worksheet lists the upcoming Renewal and 
Replacement (R&R) Fund projects planned for 2024.  
 
General Review of 2023 
 
Treated Water Production  
The annual plant production for 2023 is projected to be 6.7 billion gallons. To date, the peak 
daily plant production in 2023 was 46.55 million gallons, recorded on July 26, 2023. For 
comparison, the annual plant production and peak daily production for 2022 were 8.39 billion 
gallons and 49.76 MGD,  respectively. 
 
Water Quality 
Treated water produced at Soldier Canyon Filter Plant continues to be rated as very high-quality 
water.  All Environmental Protection Agency, (EPA) and Colorado Department of Public Health 
and Environment, (CDPHE), Safe Drinking Water regulations were met, with the exception of 
one external lab reporting error. In most cases, water quality far exceeded regulatory 
requirements.  
  
Water Quality / Regulatory / Watershed  
SCWTA continues to support monitoring of the Poudre River watershed in conjunction with 
regional partners. 
 
2024 Proposed Budget 
 
Operations & Maintenance Budget 
The proposed O&M budget for 2024 is $6,426,851. This is an increase of 4.5% from the 2023 
O&M budget of $6,151,833.  
 
Details of expense categories, proposed 2024 costs, and 2024 over 2023 budget % changes are 
listed below. 
 

1. Personnel Services ($3,347,631) – 2.0% increase. 
An assumed wage increase of 5% is included in the 2024 budget. Increases are primarily due to 
health Insurance and personnel costs.   
 

2. Professional Services ($73,465) – 37% decrease. 
Decreases in legal and engineering services. 
 

3. Utilities ($167,937)– 46.7% increase. 
Increase due to higher electricity and natural gas costs. 
 

4. Contractual Services ($572,483) – 12.2% increase. 
Increases in liability insurance, and PVP Enterprise indirect costs/capital projects. 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
5. Commodities ($1,515,619) – 8.7% increase. 

Increased cost of water treatment chemicals.  
 

6. Facilities Repair and Maintenance ($749,716) – 2.0% increase. 
Increase due to project selection. Proposed projects for 2024 include: 

 
• PLC Controls improvements. 
• Painting Pipes.  
• Replace House Water PVC Piping. 
• Replace Surface Wash Pipes.  
• Replace Filter Actuators.  
• Upgrade Filter Consoles.   
• Replace Redwood Floc Walls - Annual Program.  
• Replace filters 1-20 surface wash PVC - Annual Program.  
• Filter Air Solenoid Valve replacement program - Annual Program.  
• Tank 2 - Spot coating repairs.  
• Yard Butterfly Valve Actuator Replacement - Annual Program. 

 
Renewal and Replacement (R&R) Fund Budget 
The proposed R&R Fund budget for 2024 is $1,936,738. This is a decrease of 3.4% from the 
2023 R&R budget. Proposed 2024 R&R projects are listed below:  
 

1. New Hydrocarbon Analyzer for Poudre River and new Lab TOC Analyzer - $95,000. 
New analyzer at the PVP Sed Basin to detect gasoline spills in the Poudre River. 

2. Upgrade SCADA operating system - $260,000. 
Upgrade the iFix SCADA operating interface. 

3. Upgrade Chlorine Dioxide system - $400,000. 
Replace the older, smaller 195-gallon tank with a new 800-gallon tank, install new generators, 
and piping. 

4. Replace MCC - $568,000. 
Replace the main Plant Motor Control Center. 

5. Replace Sedimentation Sludge collectors - Basins 1-4 - Annual Program- $100,000. 
Replace sludge collectors – phase over several years until complete. 

6. Vehicle replacement - $85,000. 
Replace two 15-year-old maintenance trucks. 

7. Replace Mud Valves - Floc Basin Drains - $32,000. 
Replace original mud valves. 

8. Replace NWCWD 20-inch meter - $280,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  October 5, 2023 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 2 – Summary of 2024 District costs 
 East Larimer County Fort Collins Loveland North Weld County 

Fixed O&M $1,124,350 $1,888,504 $1,904,485 

Variable O&M $281,247 $620,724 $607,141 

Renewal and 
Replacement $442,835 $743,804 $750,099 

Total $1,848,832 $3,253,032 $3,261,724 

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2023 Budget 2.77% 3.34% 1.69% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



NWCWD Board Meeting
October 9, 2023

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation 

Agreement - 2nd Amendment 



Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement 
and By-Laws Review

Solider Canyon Water Treat Plant (SCWTP) – Governance Agreement Background 

Soldier Canyon Treatment Plant Tri-Districts Intergovernmental Agreement, March 1990 (1990 IGA)

Soldier Canyon Treatment Plant Tri-Districts Amended Intergovernmental Agreement, March 1995 (1995 Amended IGA)

By-Laws of the Soldier Canyon Steering Committee (1996)

Soldier Canyon Treatment Plant Tri-Districts First and Second  Amended Intergovernmental Agreements, 1998 and 2005 
(1998 and 05 Amended IGAs)

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement, February 1, 2017 (Agreement)

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement , April 2017 By-Laws (By-Laws)

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Retreat Notes and Organizational Chart, October 20, 2017, By-Laws (Retreat)

Revised – 1st Amendment Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement and By laws, April 2019 



Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement 
and By-Laws Review

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement, February 1, 2017 

Created a Separate Legal Entity – Title 32 

a. Governed by Board of Directors

b. Enter into Agreements 

c. Supply, Treat Water

d. Managed by Authority Manager 

e. Issue Bonds

f. District Assets were Transferred to the Authority 

g. Districts Own Capacity

Two Issues For NWCWD

a.  By- Laws -  Board Officers Could be Perpetual Appointments 

b. Unlimited financial Authority over the Districts, District were submissive to Authority 

a. Maintenance and Future expansion



Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement 
and By-Laws Review

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement, Revised Amended April 16, 2019

Authority had financial control over the Districts, District were submissive to Authority financial commitments  

Revised - The Board may by a simple majority approve Treatment Facility Improvements in an individual amount of not 
more than $1,000,000.00.  Any Treatment Plant Improvements in excess of $1,000,000.00 must be approved by the 
Directors of all Parties to whom the costs of the Treatment Facility Improvements will be assessed. 

By- Laws - Officers Positions Could be Perpetual 

Revised – General Manager From Each District will Serve as Board Officer for Two Year Terms, Rotational Positions, 
President, Vice President and Treasurer

 



Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement 
Proposed Amendment 

Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Creation Agreement, Proposed 2nd Amendment 2023

The 42-inch diameter raw water transmission line (constructed in 2021) from Northern Water’s 54-inch pipeline from Horsetooth 
Reservoir, up to the water filtration plant, such transmission line being located on real property owned by the United States Department 
of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, and licensed to the Parties by that certain “Grant of a permanent easement to construct, operate, 
and maintain a domestic water system”, dated September 30, 

The Authority’s ownership share in the PVP Sedimentation Basin and Screen identified in the agreement “Agreement between the City 
of Fort Collins and the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority regarding the Pleasant valley Pipeline Munroe Turnout Screen and 
Sedimentation Basin, dated Month Day, 2023. The percent ownership of these facilities, per District, is listed below:

 

Table 2: District Capacity in  the PVP Sed Basin 

 

Fort Collins 

Capacity in  the PVP Sed Basin – in % 

ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

53% 10.67% 20.45% 15.88% 

 

Table 3: District Capacity in the PVP Screen  

 

Fort Collins 

Capacity in the PVP Screen – in % 

ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

50% 11.35% 21.76% 16.89% 

 



{00680880.DOCX /  } 

SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT AUTHORITY 

CREATION AGREEMENT 

between 

East Larimer County Water District 

and 

Fort Collins-Loveland Water District 

and 

North Weld County Water District 

DATED October 20, 2016 

EFFECTIVE DATE February 1, 2017 

REVISED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE April 16, 2019 

 

REVISED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE   Month??   Day??        , 2023 Formatted: Not Highlight



{00680880.DOCX /  } 

Table of Contents 

I. Definitions ................................................................................................................ 2 

A. Act ................................................................................................................. 2 

B. Agreement ..................................................................................................... 2 

C. Amended IGA ............................................................................................... 2 

D. Authority ....................................................................................................... 2 

E. Authority Obligations .................................................................................... 2 

F. Board of Directors ......................................................................................... 2 

G. Debt Service Component............................................................................... 2 

H. Director .......................................................................................................... 2 

I. ELCO ............................................................................................................. 2 

J. Existing Party Debt ..................................................................................... 23 

K. Fort Collins-Loveland ................................................................................... 3 

L. Governing Board ........................................................................................... 3 

M. Gross Revenues ............................................................................................. 3 

N. Gross Revenues Fund .................................................................................... 3 

O. Net Revenues ................................................................................................. 3 

P. North Weld .................................................................................................... 3 

Q. Operation and Maintenance Expenses .......................................................... 3 

R. Operation and Maintenance Component ....................................................... 4 

S. Operation and Maintenance Fund ................................................................. 4 

T. Party or Parties .............................................................................................. 4 

U. Soldier Canyon Filter Plant ........................................................................... 4 

V. Steering Committee ....................................................................................... 4 

W. System ........................................................................................................... 4 

X. TABOR ......................................................................................................... 4 

Y. Treated Water ................................................................................................ 4 

Z. Treatment Capacity ....................................................................................... 4 

AA. Treatment Capacity Share ............................................................................. 4 

BB. Treatment Facility ......................................................................................... 5 

1. Raw Water Transmission Facilities ................................................... 5 

2. Treated Water Transmission Facilities ............................................. 65 

CC. Treatment Facility Expansion ..................................................................... 65 

DD. Treatment Facility Capital Improvements ................................................... 65 

EE. Treatment Facility Improvements ............................................................... 65 

FF. Valuation Date ............................................................................................. 76 

GG. Water Activity or Water Activities ............................................................. 76 

HH. Water Activity Enterprise ............................................................................ 76 

II. Water Treatment Services ........................................................................... 76 

II. Creation of the Authority........................................................................................ 76 

A. Nature of the Authority ............................................................................... 76 

B. Principal Place of Business ......................................................................... 76 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              ii 

C. Authority Purposes and Services ................................................................. 76 

III. Powers of Authority ............................................................................................... 76 

A. Supply Treated Water .................................................................................. 87 

B. Treatment Facilities ..................................................................................... 87 

C. Property ....................................................................................................... 87 

D. Sue ............................................................................................................... 87 

E. Seal .............................................................................................................. 87 

F. Adopt Bylaws, Rules and Regulations ........................................................ 87 

G. Essential Powers .......................................................................................... 87 

H. Employees, Agents and Contractors ........................................................... 87 

I. Site Rehabilitation ....................................................................................... 87 

J. Indemnification ........................................................................................... 87 

K. Exercise Parties’ Powers to Provide Treated Water ................................... 87 

L. Receive Contributions ................................................................................. 98 

M. Cooperate ..................................................................................................... 98 

N. Contracts ...................................................................................................... 98 

IV. Governance. ............................................................................................................ 98 

A. Board of Directors of the Authority ............................................................ 98 

1. Number ............................................................................................. 98 

2. Appointment ..................................................................................... 98 

3. Vacancies ......................................................................................... 98 

4. Compensation ................................................................................. 109 

5. Decisions ........................................................................................ 109 

B. Meetings .................................................................................................... 109 

1. Attendance ...................................................................................... 109 

2. Regular Meetings ........................................................................... 109 

3. Meeting Quorums ........................................................................... 109 

4. Special Meetings ............................................................................ 109 

5. Notice of Special Meetings ............................................................ 109 

6. Waiver of Notice .......................................................................... 1110 

7. Annual Meeting ............................................................................ 1110 

C. Duties of the Board .................................................................................. 1110 

1. Governance ................................................................................... 1110 

2. Powers .......................................................................................... 1110 

3. Policy ............................................................................................ 1110 

4. Funds ............................................................................................ 1110 

5. Finances ........................................................................................ 1110 

6. Records ......................................................................................... 1110 

7. Bylaws .......................................................................................... 1110 

8. Statutory Compliance ................................................................... 1110 

9. Authority Manager ....................................................................... 1211 

D. Officers .................................................................................................... 1211 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              iii 

1. Appointments and Term of Office ............................................... 1211 

2. Removal ....................................................................................... 1211 

3. Duties of Officers ......................................................................... 1211 

4. Bonds of Officers ......................................................................... 1312 

E. Execution of Contracts ............................................................................ 1312 

F. Indemnification ....................................................................................... 1312 

1. Defense Costs ............................................................................... 1312 

2. Settlement with Consent............................................................... 1413 

3. Non-Exclusive Rights .................................................................. 1413 

V. Financial Powers and Obligations. ..................................................................... 1413 

A. Negotiable Instruments............................................................................ 1413 

B. Fix Fees, Rates and Charges ................................................................... 1413 

C. Financial Obligations .............................................................................. 1413 

1. Debts and Obligations .................................................................. 1413 

2. Authority to Issue Bonds .............................................................. 1413 

3. Contract with Holders .................................................................. 1514 

4. Financial Obligations Not Obligations of the Parties .................. 1514 

5. Party Authorization ...................................................................... 1514 

D. Deposits ................................................................................................... 1615 

1. Gross Revenues Fund ................................................................... 1615 

2. Operation and Maintenance Fund ................................................ 1615 

3. Debt Service Fund ........................................................................ 1615 

4. Other Funds .................................................................................. 1615 

E. Fiscal Years ............................................................................................. 1615 

F. Initial Payment ........................................................................................ 1615 

VI. TABOR Enterprise. ............................................................................................ 1716 

A. Water Activity Enterprises Activities and Facilities ............................... 1716 

B. Multiple Enterprises ................................................................................ 1716 

C. Governing Board ..................................................................................... 1716 

D. Powers ..................................................................................................... 1716 

E. Taxes ....................................................................................................... 1817 

F. Grants ...................................................................................................... 1817 

G. Contracts .................................................................................................. 1817 

H. Revenue ................................................................................................... 1817 

I. Enterprise Fund ....................................................................................... 1817 

J. Miscellaneous .......................................................................................... 1817 

VII. Successor to the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant ..................................................... 1918 

A. Transfer and Deed of Treatment Facility Property ................................. 1918 

B. Personnel ................................................................................................. 1918 

C. Pension Funds .......................................................................................... 2019 

VIII. Obligation to Serve the Parties ........................................................................... 2019 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              iv 

A. Existing Treatment Facility Capacity ...................................................... 2019 

B. Treatment Capacity Share ....................................................................... 2019 

C. Expansion, Improvement, or Additional Treated Water Supply ............. 2120 

D. Modification of Treatment Capacity Share ............................................. 2120 

E. Establishment of Rates, Fees, and Charges ............................................. 2221 

F. Delivery at the Treatment Facility .......................................................... 2221 

G. Treated Water Only to the Parties ........................................................... 2221 

H. Large Customers ...................................................................................... 2221 

I. Raw Water Management and Coordination ............................................ 2322 

J. Limitation on Treated Water Supplies .................................................... 2322 

K. Water System Practices ........................................................................... 2423 

L. Water Quality .......................................................................................... 2423 

M. Agreements for Supply and Transmission .............................................. 2423 

N. Resolution of Dispute Regarding Obligation to Serve ............................ 2423 

1. Negotiation ................................................................................... 2423 

2. Mediation ..................................................................................... 2524 

3. Binding Arbitration ...................................................................... 2524 

IX. Prior Agreements ................................................................................................ 2524 

A. Terminated Agreements .......................................................................... 2524 

B. Agreements Assigned to the Authority ................................................... 2524 

X. Term, Termination and Withdrawal. .................................................................. 2625 

A. Term ........................................................................................................ 2625 

B. Termination ............................................................................................. 2625 

C. Withdrawal of Parties .............................................................................. 2726 

D. Distribution upon Termination or Withdrawal........................................ 2726 

1. Termination .................................................................................. 2726 

2. Withdrawal ................................................................................... 2726 

E. Subject to Annual Appropriations ........................................................... 2827 

F. No Termination if Outstanding Financial Obligations ............................ 2827 

G. Consolidation with a Non-Party .............................................................. 2827 

XI. Miscellaneous. .................................................................................................... 2928 

A. Additional Parties .................................................................................... 2928 

B. Notices ..................................................................................................... 2928 

C. No Third-Party Beneficiaries .................................................................. 2928 

D. Existing Agreements ............................................................................... 2928 

E. Severability .............................................................................................. 2928 

F. Amendments ............................................................................................ 2928 

G. Duplicate Originals .................................................................................. 2928 

H. Termination of Amended IGA ................................................................ 2928 

 



{00680880.DOCX /  } 

SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT AUTHORITY 

CREATION AGREEMENT 

THIS SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT AUTHORITY CREATION 

AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 20th day of October, 2016, by and among 

EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, FORT COLLINS-LOVELAND 

WATER DISTRICT, and NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, each of 

which are quasi-municipal corporations and political subdivisions of the State of 

Colorado, operating pursuant to Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S.  

RECITALS 

A. The Parties are each water districts located collectively within Larimer and 

Weld Counties, and authorized to supply and supplying water as authorized by statute for 

domestic and other public and private purposes by means of reservoirs, treatment works 

and facilities, equipment, and appurtenances incident thereto, and as typically provided 

by a water district. 

B. Article XIV, Section 18(2)(a) of the Constitution of the State of Colorado 

and Part 2, Article 1, Title 29, C.R.S., encourage and authorize intergovernmental 

agreements for the joint and cooperative provision of public services. 

C. Section 29-1-204.2, C.R.S., authorizes the Parties to establish, by contract, 

a separate governmental entity, to be known as a water authority, to be used by the 

Parties to effect the development of water resources, systems, or facilities in whole or in 

part for the benefit of the inhabitants of the Parties or others. 

D. The Parties have previously entered into numerous contractual agreements 

and cooperative arrangements to jointly provide for the construction, operation, 

maintenance, and expansion of the Treatment Facility as defined below, and the creation 

of a separate legal entity pursuant to Section 29-1-203, C.R.S., named the Soldier Canyon 

Filter Plant, to manage the Treatment Facility, such agreements including but not limited 

to the Intergovernmental Agreement, dated March 29, 1990, the Amended 

Intergovernmental Agreement, dated December 1995, the First Addendum To Amended 

Intergovernmental Agreement, dated April 21, 1998, and the Second Addendum To 

Amended Intergovernmental Agreement, dated September 20, 2005. 

E. The Parties, because of their long standing, effective, and efficient 

cooperative arrangements to jointly provide for water treatment, and the success of the 

Soldier Canyon Filter Plant in managing the Treatment Facility, wish to achieve the 

additional public benefits associated with the creation of a water authority to succeed to 

the role of the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant. 

F. Because of necessary revisions to the Creation Agreement Effective 

February 1, 2017 (“Original Creation Agreement”), the Parties have Amended and 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              2 

Restated the Original Creation Agreement effective April 16, 2019, and Month Day 

2023as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

I. Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the 

following meanings: 

A. Act.  Shall mean Article 45.1, Title 37, C.R.S. 

B. Agreement.  Shall mean this Soldier Canyon Water Treatment 

Authority Creation Agreement. 

C. Amended IGA.  Shall mean the Amended Intergovernmental 

Agreement, dated December 1995, between the Parties, as amended by the First 

Addendum to Amended Intergovernmental Agreement, dated April 21, 1998, and the 

Second Addendum to Amended Intergovernmental Agreement, dated September 20, 

2005.   

D. Authority.  Shall mean the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment 

Authority created by this Agreement. 

E. Authority Obligations.  Shall mean revenue bonds, notes or other 

financial obligations issued by the Authority payable from its Net Revenues or from any 

other available funds of the Authority. 

F. Board of Directors.  Shall mean the Board of Directors of the 

Authority. 

G. Debt Service Component.  Shall mean that portion of rates and 

charges paid to the Authority by North Weld and ELCO for Treated Water necessary for 

payment of Authority Obligations.  Revenues associated with the Debt Service 

Component are a portion of the Net Revenues of North Weld and ELCO, as such term is 

defined in resolutions of such parties relating to the issuance of revenue bonds.  Any Debt 

Service Component shall not be an Operation and Maintenance Expense of North Weld 

or ELCO and such Debt Service Component shall be paid from the Net Revenues of 

North Weld and ELCO contemporaneously with their payment of Existing Party Debt. 

H. Director.  Shall mean a member of the Board of Directors of the 

Authority. 

I. ELCO.  Shall mean the East Larimer County Water District. 

J. Existing Party Debt.  Shall mean, with respect to ELCO, its Water 

Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A and Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 

Formatted: Not Highlight



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              3 

2009B, and with respect to North Weld, its Loan Agreement with the Colorado Water 

Resources and Power Development Authority, dated as of September 1, 2009, and its 

Water Enterprise Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, which obligations are existing 

at the time of the execution of this Agreement. 

K. Fort Collins-Loveland.  Shall mean the Fort Collins-Loveland Water 

District. 

L. Governing Board.  Shall mean the Board of Directors acting as the 

Governing Board of the Water Activity Enterprise. 

M. Gross Revenues.  Shall mean all fees (including, but not limited to, 

user fees and plant investment fees), charges, and revenues directly or indirectly derived 

by the Authority for the services furnished by, or use of, the Treatment Facility, or any 

part thereof, or from the sale or provision of Treated Water, including all income 

attributable to any future dispositions of property or rights related to contracts, 

settlements, or judgments held or obtained in connection with the System or its 

operations; provided however, that there shall be excluded from Gross Revenues: (i) 

moneys borrowed and used for providing Treatment Facility Capital Improvements; (ii) 

any money and securities, and investment income therefrom, in any refunding fund, 

escrow account, or similar account pledged to the payment of any bonds or other 

obligations for the purpose of defeasing the same; (iii) any moneys received as grants or 

appropriations from the United States, the State of Colorado, or other sources, the use of 

which is limited or restricted by the grantor or donor to the provision of Treatment 

Facility Capital Improvements or for other purposes resulting in the general 

unavailability thereof, except to the extent any such moneys shall be received as 

payments for the use of the Treatment Facility, services rendered thereby, the availability 

of any such service, or the disposal of any commodities therefrom; and (iv) any revenue 

received from North Weld or ELCO which constitutes the Debt Service Component.  

N. Gross Revenues Fund.  Shall have the meaning given to it in Section 

V.D.1. of this Agreement. 

O. Net Revenues.  Shall mean the Gross Revenues remaining after the 

payment of the Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

P. North Weld.  Shall mean the North Weld County Water District. 

Q. Operation and Maintenance Expenses.  Shall mean all reasonable 

and necessary current expenses of the Authority, paid or accrued, for operating 

maintaining, and repairing the Treatment Facility, including any Treatment Facility 

Improvements and any Treatment Facility Expansion, including without limitation legal 

and overhead expenses of the Authority directly related to the administration of the 

Treatment Facility, any Treatment Facility Improvements or Treatment Facility 

Expansion; provided however, that there shall be excluded from Operation and 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              4 

Maintenance Expenses any allowance or transfers for depreciation, payments in lieu of 

taxes or franchise fees, legal liabilities not based on contract, expenses incurred in 

connection with Treatment Facility Capital Improvements, and charges for accumulation 

of reserves.  

R. Operation and Maintenance Component.  Shall mean that portion of 

rates and charges paid to the Authority by Parties for Treated Water necessary for 

payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses.  Revenues associated with the 

Operation and Maintenance Component are a portion of the Gross Revenues.  

S. Operation and Maintenance Fund.  Shall have the meaning given to 

it in Section V.D.2. of this Agreement.  

T. Party or Parties.  Shall mean ELCO, Fort Collins-Loveland, and 

North Weld, individually or collectively. 

U. Soldier Canyon Filter Plant.  Shall mean the separate legal entity 

established by the three (3) Parties pursuant to the provisions of C.R.S. §29-1-203 and the 

Amended IGA. 

V. Steering Committee.  Shall mean the governing body of the Soldier 

Canyon Filter Plant. 

W. System.  Shall mean the water distribution lines, improvements, 

facilities, and system of each Party.  The System does not include the Treatment Facility, 

the Treatment Facility Expansion, or the Treatment Facility Improvements. 

X. TABOR.  Shall mean Article X Section 20 of the Colorado 

Constitution. 

Y. Treated Water.  Shall mean the potable water treated by the 

Treatment Facility or otherwise supplied by the Authority and intended primarily for 

domestic consumption. 

Z. Treatment Capacity.  Shall mean the total volume of water which 

may be treated by the Treatment Facility during a twenty-four (24) hour period of time 

for the benefit of all three (3) Parties during the usual and ordinary operation thereof. 

Treatment Capacity may vary, from time to time, based on a number of reasons 

including, but not limited to, changes in State or federal law, operational changes, and 

Treatment Facility Expansions. 

AA. Treatment Capacity Share.  Shall mean a Party’s pro rata ownership 

of the Treatment Capacity based on its funding of the capital costs of the Treatment 

Facility, as provided in Sections VIII.B. and C. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              5 

BB. Treatment Facility.  Shall mean the water filtration plant located at 

4424 LaPorte Avenue, Fort Collins, Colorado  80521, together with the real property, 

easements, water distribution lines, master meters, improvements and other facilities, 

assets and property associated therewith, which are jointly owned and used by the Parties 

or the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant in the treatment and distribution of potable water to the 

respective Treated Water transmission and distribution systems of each Party, and which 

is being transferred to the Authority, pursuant to Section VII.A. of this Agreement.  

Existing assets include, but are not limited to, real property, personal property, 

improvements, buildings, furniture, appliances, supplies, plans, tools, vehicles, apparatus, 

mobile equipment, machinery, intangible personal property, cash, bank accounts, 

insurance policies, leases, accounts receivable, warranties, guarantees, indemnifications, 

licenses, permits, contracts, and agreements. 

1. Raw Water Transmission Facilities.  With respect to raw 

water transmission and intake facilities, the term “Treatment Facility” includes: 

a. The 42-inch diameter raw water transmission line from 

the outlet at the Soldier Canyon Dam at Horsetooth Reservoir, up to the water filtration 

plant and including the meter thereon, such transmission line being located on real 

property owned by the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, 

and licensed to the Parties by that certain “License for Installation of Raw Water 

Transmission Line Below Soldier Canyon Dam”, dated June 15, 1978; and 

b. The 42-inch diameter raw water transmission line 

(constructed in 2021) from Northern Water’s 54-inch pipeline from Horsetooth 

Reservoir, up to the water filtration plant, such transmission line being located on real 

property owned by the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, 

and licensed to the Parties by that certain “Grant of a permanent easement to construct, 

operate, and maintain a domestic water system”, dated September 30, 2020. 

a.  

c. The 42-inch diameter raw water transmission line that 

delivers raw water from the Pleasant Valley Pipeline from and including the valve 

located east of the Treatment Facility in the Pleasant Valley Pipeline right-of-way to the 

water filtration plant. 

d. The Authority’s ownership share in the PVP, identified 

in the memorandum “FINAL - Memo - Creation Agreement Amendment for PVP-Basin 

and Screen in MGD - August 16, 2023”.  

e. The Authority’s ownership in the PVP Sedimentation 

Basin, and the PVP Screen identified in memorandum “FINAL - Memo - Creation 

Agreement Amendment for PVP-Basin and Screen in MGD - August 16, 2023”, and also 

in the agreement “Agreement between the City of Fort Collins and the Soldier Canyon 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Not Highlight



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              6 

Water Treatment Authority regarding the Pleasant Valley Pipeline Munroe Turnout 

Screen and Sedimentation Basin”, dated Month Day, 2023. The percent ownership of 

these three facilities, per District, is listed below: 

Table 1: District Capacity in  the PVP 

Capacity in  the PVP – in % of 60 MGD 

ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

22.708% 43.512% 33.780% 

 

Table 2: District Capacity in  the PVP Sed Basin 

 

Fort Collins 

Capacity in  the PVP Sed Basin – in % 

ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

53% 10.67% 20.45% 15.88% 

 

Table 3: District Capacity in the PVP Screen  

 

Fort Collins 

Capacity in the PVP Screen – in % 

ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

50% 11.35% 21.76% 16.89% 

 

b.  

 

2. Treated Water Transmission Facilities.  With respect to 

Treated Water discharge and transmission facilities, the term “Treatment Facility” 

includes all Treated Water transmission lines from the water filter plant to and including 

the first meters thereon, or the boundary of the water filter plant property, whichever 

comes first. 

CC. Treatment Facility Expansion.  Shall mean the improvement, 

enhancement or expansion of the Treatment Facility for the purpose of increasing the 

Treatment Capacity of the Treatment Facility, as determined by the Board of Directors. 

DD. Treatment Facility Capital Improvements.  Shall mean Treatment 

Facility Improvements and Treatment Facility Expansion, including the acquisition of 

land, easements, facilities, and equipment (other than ordinary repairs and replacements) 

which are incorporated into the Treatment Facility. 

EE. Treatment Facility Improvements.  Shall mean the improvement or 

enhancement of the Treatment Facility which does not increase Treatment Capacity but 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Not Highlight



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              7 

which is intended to improve the efficiency of the Treatment Facility and/or quality of 

Treated Water from the Treatment Facility, as determined by the Board of Directors. 

FF. Valuation Date.  Shall mean the 120th day following the day written 

notice is given, pursuant to Section X.C. of this Agreement, of a Party’s intent to 

withdraw from this Agreement. 

GG. Water Activity or Water Activities.  Shall have the meaning set forth 

in Section 37-45.1-102(3), C.R.S. 

HH. Water Activity Enterprise.  Shall mean the Water Activity Enterprise 

established by Article VI of this Agreement. 

II. Water Treatment Services.  Shall mean the services provided by the 

Authority, as set forth in Section II.C. of this Agreement. 

II. Creation of the Authority.  The Parties hereby create a separate legal entity 

known as the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority. 

A. Nature of the Authority.  The Authority is a separate governmental 

entity, political subdivision and a public corporation of the state, separate from the Parties 

pursuant to Section 29-1-204.2(4), C.R.S.  The Authority shall have the duties, privileges, 

immunities, rights, liabilities, and disabilities of a public body politic and corporate. 

Except as limited in this Agreement, the Authority shall have all the authorities of a water 

district, organized and operated pursuant to Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S., as restricted 

herein.  In carrying out its purposes, the Authority will observe and comply with statutes 

and laws applicable to a water district.  To the fullest extent possible, the Authority shall 

be deemed a TABOR enterprise jointly established and owned by the Parties. 

B. Principal Place of Business.  The principal place of business of the 

Authority shall be 4424 La Porte Avenue, Fort Collins, Colorado 80521, unless otherwise 

established by the Authority Board of Directors. 

C. Authority Purposes and Services.  The purpose of the Authority is to 

provide Water Treatment Services consisting of providing Treated Water to the Parties to 

be delivered at the site of the Treatment Facility, or by exchange or other transmission 

agreement, including agreements with one or more of the Parties and with other suppliers 

and distributors of Treated Water, utilizing all powers associated with a water district 

operating pursuant to Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S., necessary to provide such Treated 

Water.  

III. Powers of Authority.  To enable the Authority to carry out its functions and 

provide the services described hereinabove, the Authority shall have the following 

powers: 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              8 

A. Supply Treated Water.  To operate, maintain, and manage the 

Treatment Facility and provide Treated Water from the Treatment Facility and other 

sources to the Parties as provided herein.  

B. Treatment Facilities.  To acquire, construct, expand, manage, 

maintain, or operate water treatment facilities, works or improvements, or any interest 

therein for purposes of providing Treated Water to the Parties. 

C. Property.  To acquire, hold, lease, sell, or otherwise dispose of any 

real or personal property utilized for the purposes of water treatment, except that the 

Authority may not sell, lease or dispose of the Treatment Facility without unanimous 

written consent of the Parties. The exception contained in this Section is not intended to 

require the written consent of the Parties prior to the sale or disposition of components of 

the Treatment Facility that are no longer needed to provide Treated Water to the Parties 

because of the improvement, expansion, or upgrade of the Treatment Facility. 

D. Sue.  To sue and be sued in its own name. 

E. Seal.  To have and use a corporate seal. 

F. Adopt Bylaws, Rules and Regulations.  To adopt and amend, by 

resolution, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations respecting the exercise of its 

powers and the carrying out of its purpose. 

G. Essential Powers.  To exercise any other powers which are essential 

to the provision Treated Water by the Authority to the Parties. 

H. Employees, Agents and Contractors.  To do and perform any acts 

and things authorized by Section 29-1-204.2, C.R.S., under, through, or by means of 

employees, agents, or contractors. 

I. Site Rehabilitation.  To provide for the rehabilitation of any surfaces 

adversely affected by the construction of water pipelines, facilities, or systems through 

the rehabilitation of plant cover, soil stability, and other measures appropriate to the 

subsequent beneficial use of such lands. 

J. Indemnification.  To justly indemnify property owners or others 

affected for any losses or damages incurred, including reasonable attorney fees, or that 

may subsequently be caused by or which result from actions of the Authority. 

K. Exercise Parties’ Powers to Provide Treated Water.  To exercise any 

power lawfully authorized to each of the Parties for the provision of Treated Water by the 

Authority to the Parties, including all powers and authorities authorized by Sections 32-1-

1001 and 32-1-1006, C.R.S., except as otherwise limited by this Agreement. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              9 

L. Receive Contributions.  To receive contributions, gifts, bequests or 

other grants of cash, equipment or services for the Authority, the Parties or other entities, 

individuals, or political subdivisions. 

M. Cooperate.  To own, operate, and maintain real and personal 

property and facilities in common with others, and to conduct joint, partnership, or 

cooperative operations with others. 

N. Contracts.  To enter into, make, and perform contracts of every kind, 

as authorized by law with other local governmental entities, the State of Colorado or any 

political subdivision thereof, the United States, or any political subdivision thereof, and 

any individual, firm, association, partnership, corporation or any other organization of 

any kind. 

IV. Governance. 

A. Board of Directors of the Authority.  The governing body of the 

Authority shall be the Board of Directors, in which all administrative and legislative 

power of the Authority is vested. 

1. Number.  The Board of Directors shall be comprised of six 

(6) Directors.  Each Director shall be entitled to cast one vote on any matter that comes 

before the Board. 

2. Appointment.  The governing body of each Party shall 

appoint two (2) Directors to the Board of Directors and one or more alternate Directors. 

The Party’s Chief Executive Officer, whether designated by the title Manager or 

otherwise, shall at all times be one of the two Directors appointed by each Party. Except 

for the Party’s Chief Executive Officer, all Directors shall be a member of the governing 

body of that Party. An alternative Director appointed to serve in the absence of a Party’s 

Chief Executive Officer may be another employee of the Party; otherwise, all alternative 

Directors shall be members of the governing body of the Party. Except for the Party’s 

Chief Executive Officer, each Director and alternate Director appointed by a Party shall 

serve at the pleasure of the governing body of the Party by whom the Director or alternate 

Director is appointed, and need be a member of the governing body of the appointing 

Party.  If the governing body of each Party fails to appoint either or both of its Directors 

or any alternate Directors, in order, the Chief Executive Officer, Chair, Vice-Chair, 

Secretary and Treasurer of the Party’s governing body shall be deemed the appointed 

Directors and alternate Directors of that Party.  Each Party shall provide to the Authority 

a written resolution designating the appointment of its Directors and alternates to the 

Authority Board of Directors. 

3. Vacancies.  A position of Director on the Board of Directors 

shall be deemed vacant upon the resignation, death, removal by the appointing governing 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              10 

body, or disability of any such Director.  A vacancy on the Board of Directors shall be 

filled in the same manner as appointment of a Director, as hereinabove provided. 

4. Compensation.  Directors shall receive as compensation for 

the Director’s service to the Authority, the amount set by Section 32-1-902, C.R.S., as 

such statute may be amended from time to time. The Board of Directors shall also 

provide for reimbursement to the Directors of their actual and reasonable expenses 

incurred on behalf of the Authority. 

5. Decisions.  Decisions of the Board may be made only at 

regular or special meetings, called upon notice as required herein, at which a quorum is 

present.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein or required by law, decisions of 

the Board of Directors shall be made by a majority of the Directors in attendance at the 

regular or special meeting. 

B. Meetings. 

1. Attendance.  Directors may attend any regular or special 

meeting in person, by telephone, or by video conference so long as all Directors in 

attendance can hear and be heard by all persons in attendance at the meeting. 

2. Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of 

Directors shall be set and revised, from time to time, by the Board of Directors, and shall 

be conducted not less than quarterly, at the principal place of business of the Authority, 

which shall be identified in any notice of such meetings. 

3. Meeting Quorums.  A quorum for the conduct of business at 

meetings of the Board of Directors shall require the presence of at least one Director from 

each Party, and not less than a simple majority of the Directors. 

4. Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors 

may be called by the Chair or any two (2) Directors, and it shall thereupon be the duty of 

the Secretary to cause notice of such meeting to be given, as hereinafter provided.  

Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such time and place as shall be 

fixed by the Chair or Directors calling the meeting. 

5. Notice of Special Meetings.  Written notice of any special 

meeting of the Board of Directors shall be delivered to each Director not less than three 

(3) days before the date fixed for such meeting, either personally, by facsimile, by e-mail, 

or by mail, by or at the direction of the Secretary, or upon the Secretary’s default, by the 

person calling the meeting.  If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered three 

(3) days following deposit in the United States mail, addressed to the Director at the 

Director’s address as it appears on the records of the Authority, with first-class postage 

thereon prepaid. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              11 

6. Waiver of Notice.  Whenever any notice is required to be 

given to any Director under the provisions of law or this Agreement, a waiver thereof in 

writing by such Director, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be 

equivalent to the giving of such notice.  Attendance of a Director at any meeting of the 

Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver by such Director of notice of such meeting, 

except when such Director attends such meeting for the express purpose of objecting to 

the transaction of any business because the meeting is not properly convened. 

7. Annual Meeting.  Not less than once each year, the Board of 

Directors shall call a meeting of the Board of Directors and the governing bodies of all 

Parties to jointly discuss current and future operation and maintenance, capital and 

financial planning, Treatment Capacity, Treatment Facility Capital Improvements, raw 

water management, Treated Water transmission, and any other matter related to the 

business affairs of the Authority. 

C. Duties of the Board.  The duties of the Board of Directors shall be: 

1. Governance.  To govern the business and affairs of the 

Authority. 

2. Powers.  To exercise all powers of the Authority. 

3. Policy.  To set policy related to planning and future direction 

and expansion of the Authority. 

4. Funds.  To invest the funds of the Authority. 

5. Finances.  To govern the financial transactions of the 

Authority, including the receipt, custody, and disbursement of its funds, securities, and 

other assets. 

6. Records.  To keep records of the Authority’s proceedings. 

7. Bylaws.  To adopt such bylaws as appropriate for the conduct 

of its business not in conflict herewith. 

8. Statutory Compliance.  To comply with laws applicable to a 

water district including, but not limited to, Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11, C.R.S., 

regarding public deposit protection; Parts 1, 5, and 6 of Article 1, Title 29, C.R.S., 

regarding budget preparation, accounting, and auditing; Part 4 of Article 6 and Part 2 of 

Article 72, and Article 10, Title 24, C.R.S., regarding open meetings, open records and 

governmental immunity; and TABOR; and where necessary or appropriate, to engage the 

services of employees, agents, and contractors to provide the services necessary for such 

statutory compliance. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              12 

9. Authority Manager.  To hire, supervise, and if determined 

necessary, discipline and terminate the Authority Manager, who may be designated by an 

alternate title, and who shall oversee and manage all business and affairs of the Authority, 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  The Authority Manager shall have such powers 

and responsibilities to manage the business and affairs of the Authority, as may be 

expressly delegated by the Board of Directors, including managing all personnel of the 

Authority, including all aspects of hiring, supervising, compensating, and terminating 

Authority employees, entering into contracts, and expending funds. 

D. Officers.  The officers of the Authority shall be a Chair, Vice-Chair, 

Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers and assistant officers as may be authorized 

by the Board of Directors, from time to time, to perform such duties as may be approved 

by the Board of Directors.  The Chair, Vice-Chair and Treasurer shall be members of the 

Board of Directors, but the Secretary of the Authority need not be a member of the 

Board. 

1. Appointments and Term of Office.  The members of the 

Board of Directors shall appoint the officers who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board 

of Directors.  Officers shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, as set forth in the 

Authority’s Bylaws.  Vacancies or appointment of new officers may be filled at any 

meeting of the Board of Directors. 

2. Removal.  Any officer or agent appointed by the Board of 

Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors, with or without cause, whenever in 

its judgment the best interests of the Authority will be served thereby. 

3. Duties of Officers.  In addition to duties designated by the 

Board of Directors, the duties of the officers shall include the following: 

a. Chair.  The Chair shall be a member of the Board of 

Directors and preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and, except as otherwise 

delegated by the Board of Directors, shall execute all legal instruments of the Authority. 

b. Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall be a member of the 

Board of Directors and, in the absence of the Chair or in the event of his or her inability 

or refusal to act, shall perform the duties of the Chair and, when so acting, shall have all 

the powers of and be subject to all restrictions upon the Chair. 

c. Secretary.  The Secretary need not be a member of the 

Board of Directors and shall maintain the official records of the Authority, including this 

Agreement, bylaws, rules and regulations established by the Board of Directors, minutes 

of the meetings of the Board of Directors, and a register of the names and addresses of 

the Directors, alternates and officers, and shall issue notice of meetings, attest and affix 

the corporate seal to all documents of the Authority.  A separate recording secretary and 

records custodian may be appointed by the Board of Directors for taking or assisting with 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              13 

taking and preparing meeting minutes and keeping and maintaining the official records of 

the Authority. 

d. Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall be a member of the 

Board of Directors and shall keep or cause to be kept, strict and accurate accounts of all 

money received by and disbursed for and on behalf of the Authority.  The accounting 

function shall be provided by Authority personnel, or an independent contractor under the 

supervision of the Manager and Treasurer, and shall be reviewed at least quarterly by the 

Board of Directors. 

e. Miscellaneous.  The duties and functions of the 

Secretary and the Treasurer may be performed by a single individual.  If the person 

performing the duties of Secretary is not a member of the Board of Directors, such person 

shall receive such compensation as is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. 

4. Bonds of Officers.  The Treasurer and any other officer, 

employee, or agent of the Authority charged with the responsibility for the custody of any 

of its funds or property shall give a bond in such sum and with such surety, if any, as the 

Board of Directors shall determine.  The Board of Directors, in its discretion, may also 

require any other officer, agent or employee of the Authority to give a bond in such 

amount and with such surety as shall be determined.  The cost of such bond shall be an 

expense of the Authority. 

E. Execution of Contracts.  Except as otherwise provided by law, the 

Board of Directors may authorize any Director, officer, employee, or agent to enter into 

any contract, or execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the 

Authority. 

F. Indemnification.  Without waiving the protections, limitations, and 

requirements of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Article 10, Title 24, C.R.S.: 

1. Defense Costs.  Each Director, officer, agent, employee, and 

volunteer of the Authority, whether or not then in office, and his or her personal 

representatives shall be indemnified by the Authority against all costs and expenses 

actually and necessarily incurred by such person in connection with the defense of any 

allegation, action, suit, or proceeding arising out of an act or omission of such person 

during the performance of such person’s duties and within the scope of such person’s 

appointment or employment, unless: 

a. Outside Scope of Duties.  It is determined by a court 

that the act or omission in question did not arise during the performance of his or her 

duties and within the scope of his or her appointment or employment, or that the act or 

omission of such person was willful and wanton (and if it is so determined, such person 

will be required to reimburse the Authority for its reasonable costs and reasonable 

attorney fees incurred in the defense of such person); or 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              14 

b. Settlement without Consent.  The person in question 

compromises or settles the claim without the consent of the Authority. 

2. Settlement with Consent.  Such costs and expenses shall 

include amounts reasonably paid, with the consent of the Authority, in settlement for the 

purpose of curtailing the cost of litigation. 

3. Non-Exclusive Rights.  The foregoing right of 

indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights to which such person may be 

entitled as a matter of law or by agreement. 

V. Financial Powers and Obligations. 

A. Negotiable Instruments.  All checks, drafts or other orders for 

payment of money shall be issued in the name of the Authority, and in such manner as, 

from time to time, shall be determined by the Board of Directors, except that all notes, 

bonds, or other evidences of indebtedness shall be issued by resolution of the Board. 

B. Fix Fees, Rates and Charges.  The Authority is authorized to fix, 

maintain, and revise fees, rates, and charges for the provision of Treated Water to the 

Parties as set forth in Section VIII.E. 

C. Financial Obligations. 

1. Debts and Obligations.  The Authority is authorized to incur 

debts, liabilities, or obligations payable solely from the revenues derived from the 

provision of Treated Water or from any other available funds of the Authority.  

2. Authority to Issue Bonds.  The Authority is authorized to 

issue Authority Obligations, subject to compliance by North Weld and ELCO with any 

requirements of Exiting Party Debt for the issuance of additional parity obligations, as 

those requirements are set forth in the authorizing documents for the Existing Party Debt. 

The terms, conditions, and details of said Authority Obligations, which may be issued in 

the form of bonds, notes, and other obligations, the procedures related thereto, and the 

refunding thereof shall be set forth in the resolution authorizing said bonds, notes, or 

other obligations and, as nearly as may be practicable, shall be substantially the same as 

those provided in Part 4 of Article 35 of Title 31, C.R.S., relating to water and sewer 

revenue bonds; except that the purposes for which the same may be issued shall not be so 

limited and except that said bonds, notes, and other obligations may be sold at public or 

private sale. Bonds, notes, or other obligations issued under this subsection shall not 

constitute an indebtedness of the Authority or the Parties within the meaning of any 

constitutional or statutory limitations or other provision. Each bond, note, or other 

obligation issued under this subsection shall recite in substance that said bond, note, or 

other obligation, including the interest thereon, is payable solely from the Net Revenues 

and other available funds of the Authority pledged for the payment thereof and that said 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              15 

bond, note, or other obligation does not constitute a debt of the Authority or the Parties 

within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provision. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, such bonds, notes, and other 

obligations may be issued to mature at such times not beyond forty years from their 

respective issue dates, shall bear interest at such rates, and shall be sold at, above, or 

below the principal amount thereof, all as shall be determined by the Board of Directors 

of the Authority.  

Any Authority Obligations shall be payable from Net Revenues of the Authority.  

For so long as there remains outstanding any Existing Party Debt, the Authority shall 

distinguish within its fees and charges payable by North Weld and ELCO for Treated 

Water into separate components: the Operation and Maintenance Component, the Debt 

Service Component, and revenues to be attributed to any other funds.  North Weld and 

ELCO shall pay its respective portions of the Operation and Maintenance Component 

from the gross revenues of each respective Party.  North Weld and ELCO shall pay its 

respective Debt Service Component from Party revenue available after the payment of 

Operation and Maintenance Expenses of each respective Party, and on a parity with 

North Weld and ELCO’s payment of its Existing Party Debt. So long as Existing Party 

Debt is outstanding, North Weld and ELCO may issue additional obligations of each 

respective Party on a parity with the Existing Party Debt, subject to the terms and 

conditions of resolutions of such Parties which have authorized such Existing Party Debt, 

as such resolutions have been and may be hereafter modified. 

3. Contract with Holders.  The resolution, trust indenture, or 

other security agreement, under which any bonds, notes, or other obligations are issued, 

shall constitute a contract with the holders thereof, and it may contain such provisions as 

shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Authority to be appropriate and 

necessary in connection with the issuance thereof and to provide security for the payment 

thereof, including, without limitation, any mortgage or other security interest in any 

revenues, funds, rights, or properties of the Authority. The bonds, notes, and other 

obligations of the Authority and the income therefrom shall be exempt from taxation by 

this state, except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. 

4. Financial Obligations Not Obligations of the Parties.  The 

bonds, notes, and other obligations of the Authority shall not be the debts, liabilities, or 

obligations of the Parties. 

5. Party Authorization.  The Authority shall enter into an 

intergovernmental agreement in advance with any Party who will be responsible for 

paying to the Authority in excess of $1,000,000.00 that will be relied upon by the 

Authority to pay the following: (a) any debt, including any refunding or restructuring 

debts, financial liabilities, or financial obligations incurred by the Authority; (b) costs and 

expenses not associated with Operations and Maintenance Expenses; and (c) 

accumulation by the Authority of depreciation, contingency, or reserve funds that is not 

accumulated through reoccurring rates, fees or charges for delivery of Treated Water. The 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              16 

intergovernmental agreement shall set forth the Party’s obligations for the payment to the 

Authority, the structure of the obligation being incurred by the Authority, and that the 

Party’s payment obligation to the Authority is not a debt, liability, or obligation of the 

Party, unless otherwise agreed to by the Party. 

D. Deposits.  All funds of the Authority shall be deposited, from time to 

time, to the credit of the Authority, pursuant to law, in such bank or banks or other 

financial institutions as the Board of Directors may select. The Authority will maintain 

separate funds, as set forth below, into which all revenues shall be deposited.  The 

Authority shall have the discretion to establish other funds in addition to the funds 

identified below, but shall at all times maintain the funds as set forth below. 

1. Gross Revenues Fund.  The Authority shall deposit all 

income and amounts received from the operation of its system into the Gross Revenues 

Fund. 

2. Operation and Maintenance Fund.  The Authority shall 

deposit, from time to time, into an Operation and Maintenance Fund, moneys from the 

Gross Revenues Fund in amounts sufficient to cover Operation and Maintenance 

Expenses of the Authority. 

3. Debt Service Fund.  After the Authority has deposited 

revenues from the Operation and Maintenance Component into the Operation and 

Maintenance Fund, it shall deposit the Debt Service Component into the Debt Service 

Fund.  

4. Other Funds.  After the Authority has deposited the Operation 

and Maintenance Component in the Operation and Maintenance Fund and the Debt 

Service Component in the Debt Service Fund, any remaining Net Revenues may be 

deposited in any other funds established by the Authority, from time to time. 

E. Fiscal Years.  The fiscal year of the Authority shall be January 1 

through December 31. 

F. Initial Payment.  In exchange for the Authority assuming the 

responsibilities and obligations provided herein, each Party agrees to pay the Authority, 

upon February 1, 2017, an initial operating fee.  The Parties’ initial operating fees, 

together, shall be sufficient to cover the Authority’s operations and maintenance costs for 

three (3) months, in the total amount of $738,419.  The amount of each Party’s respective 

contribution shall be based upon its average monthly water usage over the last four (4) 

years. Each Party’s initial operating fee shall be as follows: ELCO $142,736 (19.33%); 

Fort Collins-Loveland $300,854 (40.743%); and North Weld $294,829 (39.927%).  



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              17 

VI. TABOR Enterprise. 

A. Water Activity Enterprises Activities and Facilities.  The Parties 

hereby establish the Authority as a Water Activity Enterprise, in conformance with the 

Act, in order to exclude the Water Activity Enterprise from the provisions of TABOR.  

All authorities and obligations of the Authority set forth in this Agreement shall be 

carried out through the Water Activity Enterprise.  The Water Activity Enterprise itself 

shall be wholly owned by the Parties.   

B. Multiple Enterprises.  The Board of Directors may, from time to 

time, establish or restructure any Water Activity as a separate enterprise, or establish 

other water activity enterprises to carry out the purpose of this Agreement and the 

establishment of the Authority. 

C. Governing Board.  The Governing Board shall conduct the business 

of the Water Activity Enterprise in the same manner and follow the same procedures as 

the Board of Directors of the Authority.  All public business of the Water Activity 

Enterprise shall be conducted only during regular or special meetings of the Board of 

Directors at which a quorum is present.  The record of proceedings of the Governing 

Board may be incorporated into the minutes of the Board of Directors of the Authority.  

No additional oaths, bonds, or other qualifications shall be required of the Governing 

Board.  All actions of the Board of Directors shall be considered as the actions and 

business of the Water Activity Enterprise undertaken by the Board of Directors acting as 

the Governing Board of the Water Activity Enterprise.  All business of the Water 

Activity Enterprise and actions of the Governing Board shall be governed by and made 

subject to all requirements, privileges, immunities, protections, limitations, and other 

provisions of law. 

D. Powers.  The Governing Board of the Water Activity Enterprise 

may, without limitation, exercise the Authority’s legal authority relating to Water 

Activities or otherwise available to any enterprise established pursuant to TABOR or to 

Sections 37-45.1-101, et seq., C.R.S., except as expressly provided herein.  Such 

authority shall include all powers set forth in the Act, and those powers set forth in the 

Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S.,  which are consistent with the authorities of an enterprise 

under the provisions of TABOR and are necessary to operate the Water Activity 

Enterprise, including, but not limited to, the power to issue or reissue bonds, notes, or 

other obligations payable from revenues derived or to be derived from the provision of 

services, and to set rates, fees and charges for services provided by the Water Activity 

Enterprise.  The powers and authorities specifically conferred by this Article VI shall not 

modify, limit, or restrict the powers conferred by this Agreement, except as expressly 

provided herein.  The Water Activity Enterprise shall have no power which adversely 

affects the status of the Water Activity Enterprise for purposes of the application of 

TABOR. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              18 

E. Taxes.  In no event shall the Water Activity Enterprise have the 

power to levy or assess any tax which is subject to TABOR or to direct the Authority or 

the Parties to exercise their taxing powers on behalf of the Water Activity Enterprise. 

F. Grants.  The Water Activity Enterprise shall not accept or receive 

any revenue in Grants (as defined in the Act) from the Parties, State or any local 

governments, unless expressly authorized by the Board of Directors of the Authority.  

The purpose of this provision is to prevent, without the Authority’s knowledge and 

consent, any violation of the rules of TABOR applicable to enterprises. 

G. Contracts.  All contracts relating to Water Activities shall be with 

the Authority as the contracting party, and unless expressly delegated by the Governing 

Board to other persons, approved by the Governing Board and executed by the Authority 

officers. Any pre-existing contract relating to Water Activities shall be considered as 

having been approved by the Governing Board.  All contracts relating to Water Activities 

shall be implemented and discharged by the Water Activity Enterprise, unless otherwise 

provided by the Board of Directors.  For all purposes under the Act and TABOR, this 

Agreement shall, without further action, be considered as a contract for service between 

the Parties and the Water Activity Enterprise under which Water Activity services will be 

provided to the Parties by the Water Activity Enterprise, and the Parties will pay for such 

services in an amount not to exceed the costs of such services as determined, from time to 

time, by the Governing Board. 

H. Revenue.  All revenue for Water Activities provided by the Water 

Activity Enterprise, including rates, fees, tolls, charges, payments for services from the 

Authority, and all other income of the Water Activity Enterprise, shall be collected, used, 

and expended for Water Activity purposes, as determined by the Governing Board in 

accordance with and as set forth in the fiscal budget of the Water Activity Enterprise 

adopted pursuant to law.  Rates for Water Activities provided by the Water Activity 

Enterprise shall be established by the Governing Board, and collected and enforced in 

accordance with State law.  No revenue or spending of the Water Activity Enterprise 

shall be subject to TABOR.  

I. Enterprise Fund.  A Water Activity Enterprise Fund shall be 

established to separately account for all revenue and expenditures of the Water Activity 

Enterprise.  The Water Activity Enterprise shall prepare an annual budget and perform an 

annual audit which may be included in the budget or audit of the Authority.  All budgets, 

reports, audits, and financial operations of the Water Activity Enterprise shall conform to 

and be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable 

to governmental (enterprise) units and other requirements of State law. 

J. Miscellaneous.  Nothing set forth in this Agreement shall be 

construed to limit the authority of the Governing Board or the Water Activity Enterprise 

to utilize other policies or procedures for operating or continuing the Water Activity 

Enterprise in conformance with the Act and TABOR, except as otherwise expressly 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              19 

provided herein.  It is the intent of the Parties to establish the Water Activity Enterprise in 

conformance with the provisions of the Act and TABOR according to the most 

reasonable interpretations thereof.  If any term, section, or provision of this Article VI. 

shall be determined to be invalid or in violation of the enterprise qualification provisions 

of TABOR or the Act, the invalidity or disqualification of such provision shall not affect 

any of the remaining provisions of this Article.  This Agreement shall remain in effect, 

whether or not the Water Activity Enterprise currently qualifies as an enterprise pursuant 

to TABOR, until modified or repealed by the Parties. 

VII. Successor to the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant.  The Authority shall be the 

successor to the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant, and the Authority shall be entitled to all 

rights and privileges and shall assume all obligations and liabilities of the Soldier Canyon 

Filter Plant under existing contracts to which the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant is a party. 

A. Transfer and Deed of Treatment Facility Property.  Pursuant to the 

Amended IGA, each Party is the owner of an undivided one-third (1/3) interest in and to 

the Treatment Facility. In exchange for the mutual benefits provided by the terms of this 

Agreement, as of February 1, 2017, and without any additional consideration, the Parties 

and the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant have HEREBY REMISED, RELEASED, SOLD 

AND QUITCLAIMED, AND BY THESE PRESENTS DO REMISE, RELEASE, SELL 

AND QUITCLAIM unto the Authority, its successors and assigns, forever, all the right, 

title, interest, claim and demand which the Parties and the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant 

have in and to the Treatment Facility, situate, lying and being in the County of Larimer, 

State of Colorado, TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, together with all and singular 

the appurtenances and privileges thereunto belonging or in anywise thereunto 

appertaining, and all the estate, right, title, interest and claim whatsoever, of the Parties 

and the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant, either in law or equity, to the only proper use, benefit 

and behoof of the Authority and its successors and assigns forever.   The Authority shall 

use the Treatment Facility for the provision of Treated Water to the Parties pursuant to 

this Agreement. The Parties and Soldier Canyon Filter Plant further agree to execute any 

and all additional instruments or documents reasonably necessary to evidence such 

conveyance of their interests in the Treatment Facility to the Authority.  The Parties 

acknowledge that the assets assigned to the Authority may be modernized, modified, 

replaced, or disposed of by the Authority, and that any new assets acquired by the 

Authority shall be titled in the name of the Authority. 

B. Personnel.  As of February 1, 2017, all personnel previously 

employed by the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant shall be terminated by the Soldier Canyon 

Filter Plant and shall become employed by the Authority.  Such employees shall initially 

be employed pursuant to the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Personnel Guidelines and 

Procedures, and at the same compensation rates and with the same benefits as they 

received as employees of the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant just prior to termination.  

Thereafter, all personnel decisions, including compensation and benefits, shall be made 

by the Authority.  All such personnel shall be credited for previous time employed with 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              20 

the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant, such that they will be deemed to have had continuous 

employment for the entire period of their employment with Soldier Canyon Filter Plant 

and the Authority.  The Authority shall provide all management, payroll, supervision and 

personnel and human resource related services and other services customarily provided 

by an employer to an employee. 

C. Pension Funds.  All pension funds and plans of the Soldier Canyon 

Filter Plant shall be transferred to the Authority, as successor to the Soldier Canyon Filter 

Plant, subject to the statutory requirements and the requirements, authorities, and 

obligations of the trust or pension agreements or other documents and agreements 

establishing and pertaining to such pension funds and plans. 

VIII. Obligation to Serve the Parties.  The Authority shall be obligated to meet 

the Parties’ reasonable demands for Treated Water to be delivered at the location of the 

Treatment Facility. Except as may be allowed pursuant to Section VIII.G., following the 

2019-2020 Treatment Facility Expansion completion no Party is entitled to receive 

Treated Water from the Authority in excess of their Treatment Capacity Share at the time 

of delivery. 

A. Existing Treatment Facility Capacity.  The Treatment Facility is 

currently capable of treating and delivering approximately 45 million gallons per day of 

Treated Water, and such amount is the current Treatment Capacity. In each calendar year, 

Treatment Capacity will be allocated to the Parties proportionately based upon their 

Treatment Capacity Share. The Treatment Capacity shall be decreased based on 

reductions in the ability of the Treatment Facility to deliver Treated Water or reductions 

resulting from State or federal law.  Treatment Capacity shall be increased by the ability 

of the Treatment Facility to deliver additional Treated Water, including increases 

resulting from operational modifications and Treatment Facility Expansions. 

B. Treatment Capacity Share.  Notwithstanding the equal one-third 

(1/3) ownership of the Treatment Facility under the Amended IGA, or the transfer of the 

Treatment Facility to the Authority pursuant to Section VII.A. of this Agreement, based 

on previous capital funding of the Treatment Facility by the Parties, each Party’s 

Treatment Capacity Share as of the date of this Agreement is as follows: 

Party  MGD Treatment Capacity Share 

     

ELCO  12.719  28.264% 

     

Fort Collins – Loveland  16.043  35.651% 

     

North Weld  16.238   36.084% 

     

TOTAL  45.000  99.999% 

 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              21 

C. Expansion, Improvement, or Additional Treated Water Supply.  The 

Authority will be obligated to expand or improve the Treatment Facility, or obtain 

additional Treated Water through contract with other Treated Water suppliers when 

reasonably necessary, to: (i) comply with applicable local, State and federal laws 

regarding water quality; and (ii) as necessary to maintain appropriate levels of Treated 

Water service to the customers of each Party, taking into account the requirements of all 

Parties.  Circumstances that shall be deemed to create the necessity to expand or improve 

the Treatment Facility, or obtain additional Treated Water supplies to maintain 

appropriate levels of water service, include, but are not limited to, the Treatment Facility 

operating at eighty percent (80%) of maximum Treatment Capacity for ten (10) days 

during any forty-five (45) day period.  The Board may by a simple majority approve 

Treatment Facility Improvements in an individual amount of not more than 

$1,000,000.00.  Any Treatment Plant Improvements in excess of $1,000,000.00 must be 

approved by the Directors of all Parties to whom the costs of the Treatment Facility 

Improvements will be assessed.  If the Authority is fined or penalized because of the 

failure of one or more Directors to approve Treatment Plant Improvements necessary to 

comply with applicable local, State and federal laws regarding water quality, the Party or 

Parties whose Director or Directors failed to approve the Treatment Plant Improvements 

shall be assessed the costs of such fines or penalties based on their Treatment Capacity 

Share compared to the cumulative Treatment Capacity Shares of all Parties whose 

Directors failed to approve the Treatment Plant Improvements. 

D. Modification of Treatment Capacity Share.  Unless otherwise 

approved by the Directors representing the Parties to be assessed the costs of Treatment 

Facility Improvements, each Party’s share of the costs of Treatment Facility 

Improvements shall be based on its Treatment Capacity Share at the time the Treatment 

Facility Improvements are made. Any Party may choose to fund its share of the costs of 

Treatment Facility Improvements through a cash payment at the time the Treatment 

Facility Improvements are made as an alternative to service fees or charges imposed by 

the Authority to repay Authority Obligations, in which case such Party shall not be 

subject to such fees or charges. Treatment Facility Expansions shall be funded based on 

each Party’s allocation of the Treatment Facility Expansion, as approved by the Board of 

Directors, and will result in associated modifications of their respective Treatment 

Capacity Share. The 2019-2020 Treatment Facility Expansion completion will result in 

the following adjustments: 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              22 

Party Expansion 

Allocation 

Expansion 

Share 

 

Total Capacity 

Allocation 

Treatment 

Capacity Share 

ELCO 1 mgd 6.67% 13.719 mgd 22.865% 

 

Fort Collins – 

Loveland 

 

7 mgd 46.67% 23.043 mgd 38.405% 

North Weld 7 mgd 46.67% 23.238 mgd 38.730% 

 

TOTAL 15 mgd 100.01% 60.000 mgd 100% 

 

E. Establishment of Rates, Fees, and Charges.  The Board of Directors 

shall establish rates, fees, and charges for delivery of Treated Water to the Parties, so as 

to provide for all of the costs associated with owning, operating, maintaining and 

improving the Treatment Facility and providing reasonable contingency and reserve 

funds. Any charge for Treatment Facility Expansions or Treatment Facility 

Improvements, including, but not limited to, any Debt Service Component within the fees 

and charges for Treated Water, will be imposed only on, and in proportion to the benefit 

received by, the Party or Parties benefitting from the associated cost. 

F. Delivery at the Treatment Facility.  The Authority’s obligation is to 

deliver Treated Water to the Parties at the location of the Treatment Facility.  It will be 

the responsibility of each Party to provide transmission and distribution of Treated Water 

supplied by the Authority to such Party’s customers.  The Authority shall have no 

obligation to develop transmission or distribution systems to supply water to the Parties, 

nor to supply Treated Water to points other than at the Treatment Facility. 

G. Treated Water Only to the Parties.  The Authority shall sell and 

provide Treated Water only to the Parties.  The Authority shall not enter into any 

agreements or arrangements to provide Treated Water to any person or entity other than a 

Party without the written consent of the Parties.  Unless agreed to by written consent of 

all the Parties, any person or entity wishing to receive Treated Water from the Authority 

must enter into an appropriate service agreement or similar arrangement with one of the 

Parties, and the Authority shall have no direct relationship or obligation to such person or 

entity. Any Party may lease to any other Party all or a portion of their Treatment Capacity 

Share that is in excess of its current needs.  Such lease shall be a contractual arrangement 

between the lessor and lessee Parties only, and the Authority will have no direct 

responsibility to the lessee Party. 

H. Large Customers.  The Parties acknowledge that additional or 

expansion of a single customer or service area that, within a period of twelve (12) 

months, increases the demand for Treated Water in excess of five hundred thousand 

gallons (500,000) per day, may substantially impact the Treatment Facility and the ability 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              23 

of the Authority to provide Treated Water to Parties. Any Party wishing to increase 

Treated Water service to a single existing or new customer or service area in such amount 

within such time period shall, to the extent reasonably possible, first provide not less than 

one hundred eighty (180) days written notice to the Authority.  The Authority shall only 

be obligated to provide such service to the Party to the extent it has such service capacity, 

however, if such Treated Water demand should create an obligation for the Authority to 

serve pursuant to Article VIII. of this Agreement, the Authority shall proceed to improve 

or expand the Treatment Facility or obtain additional Treated Water from another 

supplier to meet such demand. 

I. Raw Water Management and Coordination.  The obligations to 

manage raw water supplies remain with the Parties.  The Authority will coordinate with 

each Party, or its designee, to maximize the efficiencies of raw water deliveries from 

Horsetooth Reservoir, the Pleasant Valley Pipeline, and future sources to the Treatment 

Facility.  The Parties’ current designee for coordinating raw water supplies is the Parties’ 

joint water resource staff. 

J. Limitation on Treated Water Supplies.  The Authority’s obligation to 

provide Treated Water to any Party is dependent upon that Party having sufficient 

Treatment Capacity Share and providing adequate raw water for treatment by the 

Authority at the Treatment Facility.  In the event the amount of Treated Water available 

from the Treatment Facility is limited due to inadequate amounts of raw water inventory, 

each Party shall be entitled to receive only that percentage of Treated Water, based upon 

their respective percentages of inventories, of raw water supplied to or for the benefit of 

the Treatment Facility.  Any Party receiving inadequate volumes of Treated Water from 

the Treatment Facility due to inadequate raw water inventory of such Party shall secure 

such additional raw water inventory prior to receiving additional Treated Water.  It is 

expressly agreed that such Party may not utilize the raw water inventory of any of the 

other Parties without the prior written consent of such other Parties. Upon expansion of 

the Treatment Capacity to 60 mgd as contemplated in Section VIII. D. of this Agreement, 

if in any calendar year within any seven (7) day period a Party exceeds its Treatment 

Capacity Share on a daily basis for three (3) or more days, it shall pay an annual fee of 

$14,750 multiplied by the average usage above its Treatment Capacity Share for the three 

(3) highest usage days within such seven (7) day period.  If a Party has multiple seven (7) 

day periods within a calendar year where it exceeds its Treatment Capacity Share for 

three (3) or more days, the annual fee shall be based on the seven (7) day period having 

the highest average usage for the three (3) highest usage days. Such payment shall be 

paid pro rata to the other Party or Parties with available Treatment Capacity Share, based 

on their pro rata unused Treatment Capacity Share on such day. Such payment shall be 

increased annually by the rate of inflation determined by the percentage change in the 

United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for Denver-Boulder-

Greeley, all urban consumers, or its successor index. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              24 

K. Water System Practices.  No Party shall voluntarily operate its 

System in such a manner as shall adversely impact the Treatment Facility, including, but 

not limited to, activities which shall: (i) unreasonably increase the cost of Treated Water; 

(ii) unnecessarily interfere with the operation of the Treatment Facility; and (iii) 

adversely impact the Treatment Capacity of the Treatment Facility. Each Party hereby 

covenants and agrees with the others to operate its System in such a manner as shall 

maximize and optimize the efficiency of the Treatment Facility and its Treatment 

Capacity. In the event that water Treatment Capacity of the Treatment Facility is limited 

or interrupted due to unexpectedly high usage of Treated Water or drought conditions or 

in the event that Treatment Capacity is limited or interrupted due to unforeseen and 

unexpected situations, including pressure failures, water line breaks, power failures, 

temporary repairs, facility breakdowns, health reasons, safety reasons, floods, fires, 

earthquakes, natural catastrophes, acts of God or other emergencies, unless otherwise 

agreed to, each Party shall only utilize its pro rata share of the then existing total 

Treatment Capacity. 

L. Water Quality.  The Authority shall ensure that all Treated Water 

delivered to the Parties meets all applicable local, State, and federal laws regarding water 

quality.  The Board of Directors may determine to provide Treated Water of higher 

quality than required by law.  If any Party wishes to receive Treated Water of higher 

quality than determined by the Board of Directors, the Authority shall provide water of 

such higher quality, so long as such Party pays any direct and indirect costs associated 

with meeting such higher quality standard, as determined by the Board of Directors. 

M. Agreements for Supply and Transmission.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, to meet its obligations to provide Treated Water to the Parties and, when 

deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors, to assist with the delivery of Treated 

Water to the Parties, the Authority may enter into agreements with other suppliers and 

distributors of the Treated Water including, but not limited to, any of the Parties and the 

City of Fort Collins.  To facilitate delivery of Treated Water to the Parties, the Authority 

may enter into exchange, transmission, or supply agreements.  The Authority shall also 

honor any existing or future exchange, transmission, or supply agreements entered into 

by any of the Parties with other suppliers and distributors of Treated Water, so long as the 

role of the Authority is limited to providing Treated Water for the benefit of a Party at the 

location of the Treatment Facility. 

N. Resolution of Dispute Regarding Obligation to Serve. 

1. Negotiation.  If any Party believes that the Authority is not 

meeting its obligation to serve Treated Water to that Party, such Party shall have the right 

to request a meeting with the Authority regarding whether such obligation is not being 

met and if not, methods of meeting it. Such Party shall give written notice to the 

Authority, requesting a meeting within thirty (30) days thereafter to discuss the matter. 

Such Party and the Authority shall meet within said thirty (30) day period and negotiate 

in good faith relative to the obligation of the Authority to serve such Party.  



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              25 

2. Mediation.  If the Authority and the Party are not able to 

reach an agreement regarding the Authority’s obligation to serve that Party or Treatment 

Plant Improvements necessary to comply with applicable local, State and federal laws 

regarding water quality, such Party may submit the matter to mediation between the 

Authority and such Party.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Authority and the Party, the 

American Arbitration Association shall appoint one (1) or more mediators, and its rules 

and procedures shall apply to the mediation. In the event such mediation results in a 

settlement, the result shall be reduced to writing and approved by the Authority and the 

Party.  

3. Binding Arbitration.  In the event the Authority and the Party 

are unable to arrive at an agreement regarding the Authority’s obligation to serve the 

Party within forty-five (45) days after the appointment of a mediator, then the Party shall 

have the right to require that the matter be submitted to binding arbitration. The Authority 

and the Party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of written demand for binding 

arbitration within which to select the arbitrators. In the event the parties are unable to 

mutually agree upon the arbitrators and the rules and procedures, then the Authority and 

the Party shall each appoint a disinterested and impartial arbitrator and give written 

notice thereof to the other.  The two (2) arbitrators so selected shall name a third 

arbitrator within fifteen (15) days thereafter. In the event the two (2) arbitrators are not 

able to agree upon a third arbitrator, then such third arbitrator shall be appointed by the 

presiding judge of the Eighth Judicial District. All arbitrators shall serve as neutral, 

independent, and impartial arbitrators. Except as otherwise provided herein or agreed to 

by the Authority and the Party, arbitration shall be in accordance with the Colorado 

Uniform Arbitration Act of 1975, §13-22-201, et seq., C.R.S.  Unless otherwise agreed 

to, any arbitration hearing shall be held as soon as reasonably possible in the City of Fort 

Collins, Colorado, at such time as shall be established by the arbitrators, upon giving 

reasonable notice thereof to the Parties concerned. The Authority and the Party shall each 

bear its own arbitration costs, attorneys' fees and expenses. The costs of arbitrators shall 

also be shared equally.  The decision of the arbitrators shall be made within fifteen (15) 

days after the conclusion of the hearing, and shall be binding on the Parties to the 

arbitration. 

IX. Prior Agreements.  The Parties have previously entered into certain 

agreements, supplemental agreements, and documents relating to the use, ownership, 

construction, operation, maintenance, and expansion of the Treatment Facility.  

A. Terminated Agreements.  The Parties entered into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement, dated March 29, 1990, which terminated and cancelled a 

number of such documents previously entered into between the Parties.  

B. Agreements Assigned to the Authority.  Agreements, supplemental 

agreements, deeds, easements, and other documents that were entered into by one or 

more of the Parties with other entities have not been terminated, and shall continue for 

the benefit of the Authority.  All rights, duties and obligations of the Parties or the Soldier 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              26 

Canyon Filter Plant with respect to these documents are hereby deeded, conveyed, or 

assigned to the Authority, unless expressly or impliedly prohibited by the terms of such 

documents.  The Parties and the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant shall take such additional 

action and execute such additional documents as may be reasonably necessary to deed, 

convey, or assign all such interests under such documents to the Authority.  Such 

agreements, supplemental agreements, deeds, easements, and other documents include, 

but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Supplemental Agreement, dated February 15, 1962, entered 

into by and between the Colorado State Board of Agriculture and Fort Collins-Loveland  

2. Memorandum of Agreement, dated April 26, 1962, entered 

into by and between the Colorado State Board of Agriculture and Fort Collins-Loveland;  

3. Memorandum of Agreement, dated February 15, 1963, 

entered into by and between the Colorado State Board of Agriculture and Fort Collins-

Loveland; 

4. Bargain and Sale Deed, dated June 29, 1965, and recorded on 

June 30, 1965, in Book 1295 at Page 48 of the Larimer County, Colorado records; 

5. Contract and Grant of Easement for Settling and Drawing 

Ponds near Horsetooth Reservoir, dated March 14, 1974, entered into by and between 

The United States of America, Fort Collins-Loveland, ELCO and North Weld; 

6. Amendment to Operating Agreement of May 11, 1962, 

between the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District and Fort Collins-Loveland;  

7. Special Warranty Deed from Fort Collins-Loveland to Fort 

Collins-Loveland, ELCO and North Weld, dated January 16, 1985, and recorded March 

26, 1985, at Reception No. 85013980 of the Larimer County, Colorado records; and 

8. Assignment of Easement from Fort Collins-Loveland to Fort 

Collins-Loveland, ELCO and North Weld, dated January 16, 1985, and recorded March 

26, 1985, at Reception No. 85013981 of the Larimer County, Colorado records. 

X. Term, Termination and Withdrawal. 

A. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective February 1, 2017, 

following execution by all three (3) Parties.  The term of this Agreement shall be 

unlimited, and shall extend until terminated as provided herein. 

B. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated only by the 

unanimous consent of all Parties to the Agreement at the time of termination, except that 

if there are only two (2) member of the Authority, notice of withdrawal provided by 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              27 

either Party, pursuant to the following subsection, shall effect a termination as of the end 

of the fiscal year. 

C. Withdrawal of Parties.  A Party may withdraw from this Agreement 

as of the end of any fiscal year by written notice authorized by the governing body of 

such Party, provided to the Board of Directors and each Party no later than one hundred 

eighty (180) days prior to the end of the fiscal year.  A withdrawing Party shall remain 

liable for any and all financial obligations incurred by such Party until the effective date 

of the withdrawal.  Withdrawal by any Party shall not cause termination of this 

Agreement, so long as there remains at least two (2) Parties that have not withdrawn.  

Dissolution of a Party shall be treated as a withdrawal. 

D. Distribution upon Termination or Withdrawal.  Upon termination or 

withdrawal, unless otherwise agreed to by all Parties, each terminating or withdrawing 

Party shall be paid for their interest in the Authority based on its Treatment Capacity 

Share as follows: 

1. Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement, all assets 

and property of the Authority shall be liquidated and distributed to the terminating Parties 

based on their Treatment Capacity Share. Disposal of the assets and property of the 

Authority shall be in consideration of fair market value, as determined by appraisal by a 

qualified appraiser selected by the Authority. If there are only two (2) members of the 

Authority and termination is brought about by notice of withdrawal provided by either 

Party, in case of dispute regarding selection of an appraiser, the appraiser shall be 

selected as set forth in the following paragraph, except that each of the two (2) remaining 

Parties shall select one (1) appraiser instead of the Authority selecting an appraiser.  

2. Withdrawal.  Upon a Party withdrawing from the Authority, 

the withdrawing Party’s interest in the Authority will be determined and distributed to it 

as follows:  

a. Distribution by Agreement.  The Withdrawing Party 

and the Authority may agree for the Authority to reimburse the Withdrawing Party for its 

interest in the Authority upon such terms and conditions as they shall mutually agree. 

b. Distribution by Appraisal.  If the Authority and the 

withdrawing Party are unable to agree on reimbursement for the withdrawing Party’s 

interest in the Authority, the withdrawing Party shall be paid its Treatment Capacity 

Share of the fair market value of the Treatment Facility, less the same percentage of the 

amount of any unpaid financial obligation of the Authority associated with the Treatment 

facility times seventy-five percent (75%).  The fair market value of the Treatment Facility 

shall be determined by a qualified appraiser selected by mutual agreement of the 

withdrawing Party and the Authority. The Treatment Facility shall be valued as of the 

Valuation Date. In the event the Parties are unable to mutually designate an acceptable 

appraiser, the withdrawing Party and the Authority shall each select one (1) MAI 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              28 

appraiser and the two (2) appraisers so selected shall determine the fair market value of 

the Treatment Facility.  In the event that such appraisers are unable to mutually agree 

within one hundred twenty (120) days after their appointment upon the fair market value 

of the Treatment Facility, then the two (2) appraisers so selected shall agree upon a 

disinterested third MAI appraiser, and a decision of the majority of the three (3) 

appraisers shall be final. All fees and expenses of all appraisers and any experts, and 

expenses incurred for other information necessary for their analyses in determining the 

fair market value of the Treatment Facility, shall be borne fifty percent (50%) by the 

withdrawing Party and fifty percent (50%) by the Authority. Unless otherwise agreed to 

by the non-withdrawing Parties, reimbursement for the withdrawing Party’s interest in 

the Treatment Facility shall be payable by the Authority from existing funds and 

revenues or revenue financing which, together with an increase in rates, fees, or charges 

for Treated Water delivered by the Authority in an amount and for a period of time of not 

more than twenty percent (20%) and ten (10) years, are sufficient to pay all projected 

expenses of the Authority, including anticipated capital improvement expenses and such 

reimbursement, as determined in the reasonable discretion of the Authority.  The 

Authority shall establish and collect such rates, fees, and charges for Treated Water, up to 

such amount, for no more than such period, and the Withdrawing Party’s right to 

reimbursement for its interest in the Treatment Facility shall be further limited to such 

revenues and such time period. 

c. Distribution When Financial Obligation Outstanding.  

Notwithstanding the previous subparagraphs a. and b. of this paragraph 2, the Authority 

shall have no obligation to reimburse a withdrawing Party for its interest in the Authority 

if the Party seeks to withdraw when the Authority has outstanding any multiple fiscal 

year financial obligation, multi-year financing, or lease purchase which may be extended 

for more than one year. 

E. Subject to Annual Appropriations.  Any obligation to make 

payments upon withdrawal or termination which arises, in any year in which the 

Authority does not qualify as a TABOR enterprise, is subject to annual appropriations by 

the Authority. 

F. No Termination if Outstanding Financial Obligations.  This 

Agreement may not be rescinded or terminated so long as the Authority has bonds, notes, 

or other obligations outstanding, unless provision for full payment of such obligations, by 

escrow or otherwise, has been made pursuant to the terms of such obligations. 

G. Consolidation with a Non-Party.  Consolidation by a Party with a 

non-party to form a single legal entity, unless agreed to by the non-consolidating Parties 

in their sole discretion, shall be deemed a withdrawal by the consolidating Party from this 

Agreement.  Such withdrawal shall occur as of January 1 following any formal action to 

effect such consolidation or the date of such consolidation, whichever occurs first. 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              29 

XI. Miscellaneous. 

A. Additional Parties.  Additional governmental or quasi-governmental 

entities authorized to provide Treated Water may be added to this Agreement as a party 

with unanimous written consent formally approved by the governing body of each Party.  

An entity added as a party shall be subject to such terms and conditions as the Board of 

Directors, in its sole discretion, may determine.  A new party may be assessed a capital 

investment fee to cover its pro rata share of the costs of those capital assets previously 

purchased by the Authority or provided by the Parties for joint use by all Parties. 

B. Notices.  Any formal notice, demand, or request provided for in this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served, given, or made if 

delivered in person, by facsimile, or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 

to the Parties at the addresses, as set forth on each signature page attached hereto, unless 

another address is certified to the Authority. 

C. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to create any third-party benefits or beneficiaries, or create a right or cause of 

action for the enforcement of its terms, in any entity or person not a party to this 

Agreement, including any employees, volunteers, officers, or agents of the Parties. 

D. Existing Agreements.  This Agreement shall not terminate any 

existing agreement between any Parties and any non-party, except as expressly noted in 

this Agreement. 

E. Severability.  In the event that any of the terms, covenants, or 

conditions of this Agreement, or their application, shall be held invalid as to any person, 

corporation, or circumstance by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this 

Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and such determination shall not affect or impair 

the validity or enforceability of any other provision, and the remaining provisions shall be 

interpreted and applied so far as possible to reflect the original intent and purpose of this 

Agreement. 

F. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended only by written 

document approved by formal authority of the governing bodies of all of the Parties; 

provided, however, that such amendment will not affect other obligations outstanding of 

the Authority unless provision for full payment of such obligations, by escrow or 

otherwise, has been made pursuant to such obligations. 

G. Duplicate Originals.  This Agreement shall be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

H. Termination of Amended IGA.  This Agreement amends, 

supersedes, and replaces in its entirety the Amended IGA, however, the Steering 



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              30 

Committee shall continue to exist for purposes of winding up the affairs of the Soldier 

Canyon Filter Plant and transferring it assets and its real and personal property to the 

Authority, until terminated by Resolution of the Board of Directors, or July 1, 2017, 

whichever occurs first. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]  



DRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - REDLINE - Revised and Restated Creation 

Agreement August 2023 for PVP.docxDRAFT - Revised and Restated Creation Agreement March 2023.docx                                              31 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 

as follows: 

Executed this ___ day of ________________, 20192023, by the East Larimer 

County Water District. 

East Larimer County Water District 

 

By:  

 Loren R. Maxey, President/Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

 

Mike Scheid, Secretary 

 

 

Executed this ___ day of ________________, 20192023, by the Fort Collins-

Loveland Water District. 

Fort Collins-Loveland Water District 

 

By:  

 James Borland, President/Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

 

Chris MatkinsPletcher, Secretary 

 

Executed this ___ day of ________________, 20192023, by the North Weld 

County Water District. 

North Weld County Water District 

 

By:  

 Gene StilleTad Stout, President/Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

 

Scott Crockroft, Secretary 

 



SOLDIER CANYON WATER 
TREATMENTAUTHORITY 

To: Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Board 

From: Mark Kempton, P.E., CWP 

Date: August 16, 2023 

Re: Proposed amendment to the Authority Creation Agreement to include District 
ownership of the Pleasant Valley Pipeline (PVP), PVP Sed Basin, PVP Screen and 
Horsetooth facilities. 

On July 1, 1998, the Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Commitee fixed the Tri-District’s percent 
ownership in the PVP and associated facili�es as follows: 

Table 1: July 1998 to December 2018 percent ownership in 60 MGD capacity in the PVP 
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 
22.708% 43.512% 33.780% 

The Table 1 percent ownerships are also reflected in monthly billing invoices from Soldier 
Canyon Filter Plant (SCFP) to the Districts up through December 2018. In 2019, District billing 
was modified to reflect the recommenda�ons of the Ra�elis rate study, and the Table 1 PVP 
percentages were seemingly abandoned. 

The Table 1 percentages are subsequently reflected in the following two tables for the District 
ownership of the PVP, and the PVP Sedimenta�on Basin. An invoice for the construc�on of the 
PVP showing the same percentages as Table 1 is atached below for documenta�on purposes.  

Table 2: District % ownership and capacity in the PVP (Source: Table 1) 

Fort Collins (60 
MGD) 

Capacity in the PVP (60 MGD) - in % and MGD 
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

100%/60 MGD 22.708%/13.62 
MGD 

43.512%/26.11 
MGD 

33.780%/20.27 
MGD 

District percent ownership of the PVP Sedimentation Basin is shown in Table 3 with Table 1 
values applied to the Tri-Districts $807,538 share of the construction cost. 



2  

 

Table 3: District % ownership and costs in the PVP Sedimentation Basin – 60 MGD Capacity 
(Source: Table 1 values) 

 
Fort Collins 

PVP Sedimentation Basin (47%)* – in %/$ owed to Fort 
Collins 

ELCO FCLWD** NWCWD 
53%/$895,554 10.67%/$183,376 20.45%/$351,375 15.88%/$272,787 

 
*Total project cost = $1,703,092, Tri-Districts share (47%) = $807,538. 
**Paid $150,000 to the City in 2015. 
Note: One District paid the City in 2013 using Table 1 percentages, therefore Table 3 costs to 
the City  were calculated using Table 1 percentages of $807,538.  Table 3 District ownership 
percentages were calculated using Table 1 percentage of 47%. 
 
In February 2008, SCFP reimbursed the City of Fort Collins $111,875, which is 50% of the total 
cost for the purchase and installation of the HydroDyne Flow Screen at the head of the PVP. 
This charge was billed by SCFP to the Districts using the then Capital Improvements percent 
allocation, which differed from the PVP percent allocation in Table 1. Documentation of the 
City’s Screen invoice and associated billing is attached below. For the sake of consistency, it was 
decided to apply Table 1 values to the PVP Screen ownership. The final District percentage 
ownership of the PVP Screen is shown in Table 4. 
 
Table 4: Capacity in the PVP Screen (Source: 50% of Table 1 values) 

 
Fort Collins 

Capacity in the PVP Screen (50%) – in % 
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

50% 11.35% 21.76% 16.89% 
 
Tables 1 through 4 were discussed and verified by Board members at the August 10th, 2023, 
Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Board meeting. 
 
Table 5: Current Authority Ownership* (Source: 2017 Authority Crea�on Agreement) 

Authority Ownership - in %  
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

22.865% 38.405% 38.73% 
*Table 5 is for reference and comparison purposes only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3  

 

Tables 6 and 7 are for known exis�ng executed agreements with the individual Districts and 
have been requested to be included in the Crea�on Agreement for reference only.  
 
Table 6: Northern Water 57-inch Horsetooth Outlet Pipe Capaci�es (Source: 1977 
Agreement/w individual Districts and Northern Water) 

 
 

Capacity in the HT Outlet Line - MGD 
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD  

35 MGD 9.1 MGD 16.4 MGD 
 
Table 7: Horsetooth Outlet Project Pump Sta�on – 35.3 MGD maximum capacity (Source: 
April 2020 Agreement/w individual Districts and Fort Collins) 

 
Fort Collins 

Capacity in the HOP Pump Sta�on – in % and MGD 
ELCO FCLWD NWCWD 

43.3%/15.3 MGD 8.5%/3 MGD 14.2%/5 MGD 34%/12 MGD 
 













 

2248.0007; S6NK76D5HPM7-563897203-299 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20231009-01 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

ADOPTING A COMMERCIAL METER OVERUSE SURCHARGE POLICY 

     

 

WHEREAS, the North Weld County Water District (the “District”) was organized pursuant 

to §§ 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”), as amended, and is a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 

(the “Board”) is empowered with the management, control, and supervision of all the business and 

affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to adopt, 

amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and laws 

of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and 

WHEREAS, in order to preserve the health, safety, and welfare of the District’s water 

distribution system and water resources, the District has undertaken measures to reduce demand 

on the District’s water system including the implementation of water surcharges for exceeding 

water allocations; and 

WHEREAS, in order to preserve the health, safety, and welfare of the District’s water 

distribution system and water resources, the District desires to take additional measures with 

respect to non-residential or wholesale customers (“Commercial Customers”) to further reduce 

demand on the District’s water distribution system and water resources; and 

WHEREAS, the District has established a Commercial Customer as a customer with a 

water tap allocation of more than four (4) acre-feet of water per year as measured from a 

commercial water meter (“Commercial Meter”) and desires to impose an enhanced Commercial 

Meter overuse surcharge for Commercial Customers overusing water in excess of thresholds 

established by the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption of this Commercial Meter Overuse Surcharge 

Policy to be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare within the District.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 



 

2248.0007; S6NK76D5HPM7-563897203-299 

 

1. Adoption. The Board hereby adopts the Commercial Meter Overuse Surcharge 

Policy (the “Policy”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

2. Authorization. The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, 

to implement and otherwise oversee compliance with the policy set forth herein. 

3. Amendments. The District expressly reserves the right to amend, revise, redact, 

and/or repeal this Resolution in whole or in part, from time to time, in order to further the purpose 

of carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the District.  

4. Conflict.  If any part of the Regulation is in conflict or inconsistent with any other 

District policy, procedure, or practice currently in effect, this Regulation shall trump such other 

District policy, procedure or practice.  

5. Severability. If any term or provision of the Regulation is found to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, such 

invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall not affect the validity of the Regulation as a whole 

but shall be severed from the Regulation, leaving the remaining terms or provisions in full force 

and effect.  

6. Effective Date. This Regulation shall be effective immediately and shall remain in 

full force and effect until such time as such policy is repealed by the Board.   

 

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2248.0007; S6NK76D5HPM7-563897203-299 

3 

ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

             

President 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

Attorneys at Law 

 

 

       

General Counsel to the District 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Signature page to Resolution Adopting a Commercial Meter Overuse Surcharge Policy 



 

2248.0007; S6NK76D5HPM7-563897203-299 

4 

 

EXHIBIT A 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

COMMERCIAL METER OVERUSE SURCHARGE POLICY 

1. Commercial Meter Overuse Surcharge Policy:  The District hereby establishes that in 

order to reduce demand on the District’s water distribution system and to deter water 

overuse by Commercial Customers, any customer with a Commercial Meter that exceeds 

their “Calculated Maximum Annual Volume” (defined below) shall be required to pay an 

enhanced surcharge in the amount of $22.00 per thousand gallons, or as otherwise may be 

set forth on the District’s Fee Schedule, as may be amended from time to time. 

Calculated Maximum Annual Volume is calculated as the five (5) year average of the 

Commercial Customer’s maximum annual usage, minus ten percent (10%). 

In general, a Commercial Meter is classified as a water tap with an allocation of more than 

four (4) acre-feet of water. 

2. Enforcement:  The Board hereby directs the District Manager, as may be necessary, to 

implement and oversee compliance with this Policy effective for the water year from 

November 2023 to October 2024, and from this year forward, in accordance with any rules 

and regulations of the District which may be in existence now or adopted in the future. 

 



W/COFC W/COFC W/COFC

X
\\\ \\\ \\\\\\\\\

\\\

\\\

TEL

S

TEL

TEL

TEL

S
S

S
S

S S

S S

S

S

D

VB

VB

VB
VB

VB

SS
SS

S

S S
SS

SS
S S

S

S

S

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

10
0 F

P

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP 100 FP 100 FP

10
0 

FP
10

0 
FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP 100 FP

100 FP

10
0 F

P

10
0 

FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP100 FP 100 FP 100 FP

100 FP

100 FP
100 FP

100 FP

100 FP 100 FP

100 FP

100 FP 100 FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP 100 FP
100 FP

100 FP
100 FP100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP

100 FP

10
0 

FP
10

0 
FP

10
0 

FP

10
0 

FP

100 FP

100 FP

A

LCR 48 / EAST VINE DRIVE (PAVED)

LC
R

 1
/W

C
R

 1
3 

(G
R

AV
EL

)

IN
TE

R
ST

AT
E 

25

LC
R

 3
 (P

AV
ED

)

BN
SF

 R
AI

LW
AY

EXISTING
SUMMIT VIEW

PUMP STATION

PP-101 PP-102 PP-103 PP-104 PP-105

PP-106 PP-107 PP-108

PP-109

PP-110

PP-111

PP-112

PP-113

PP
-1

14

PP-115 PP-116 PP-117 PP-118 PP-119 PP-120 PP-121 PP-122 PP-123 PP-124

LARIMER AND WELD CANAL
LARIMER AND WELD CANAL

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8 9

10
11

12
13 14

15 16

17

18 19

20

CF

CF

7228

1449

600

53485

1443

6478

56500

56502

59692

59694

7231

LARIMER AND WELD CANAL

B

D

E

F

G

H

C

BO
XE

LD
ER

 C
R

EE
K

TI
M

BE
R

LI
N

E 
R

D
 (P

AV
ED

)

LC
R

 5
(G

R
AV

EL
)

MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE (PAVED)

VINE DRIVE (PAVED)

AUBURN ESTATES

RIDGEVIEW LANE (GRAVEL)

LCR 5 METERING VAULT

COUNTY LINE ROAD
METERING VAULTS

UN
NA

M
ED

 D
RA

IN
AG

E

100 FP

100 FP

DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISIONREVISION REVISED BY

NEWT PIPELINE
PROJECT PHASE 3

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2
DRAWING:

SHEET:

DRAWN BY:

OF

PROJECT: 171016.13-600

DESIGNER:
APPROVED BY:

D
AT

E:
  A

pr
 1

5,
 2

02
3 

 1
2:

03
am

D
W

G
:  

S:
\2

00
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

17
10

16
.1

3\
90

0 
C

AD
\3

0%
 d

es
ig

n_
ne

w
t 3

\0
2-

sh
ee

ts
\G

\1
71

01
6.

13
_G

-1
01

.d
w

g 
   

 U
SE

R
: i

m
ar

tin
ez

PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO  80129
(303) 997-5035
www.providenceic.com

NO
RTH WELD

C
O

U
N

T Y  WA T ER  D I STR
I C

T

ESTABLISHED
1962

I. MARTINEZ
W. DAUGHTRY

D. RICE

70% PLAN SET
PIPE AND VALVE

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
APRIL 14, 2023

SHEET INDEX, PROPERTY
OWNERS, ACCESS LOCATIONS,

AND SURVEY CONTROL 5

G-101

68

N
SCALE: 
PLAN

1"=800'

LEGEND:

PROPERTY LINE

PIPELINE

PROPERTY NUMBERX

SITE ACCESS LOCATION NUMBERX

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

CONTROL POINTS TABLE

PNT# POINT ID NORTHING EASTING
ELEVATION

(FT)
600 CP-MOUND 1463033.52 3136249.09 4991.00

1443 CITY OF FT COLLINS BENCHMARK "39-01" 1463748.13 3139402.45 4984.80

1449 CITY OF FT COLLINS BENCHMARK "92-3" 1462898.21 3131569.26 4988.87

6478 CP-FARM 1463691.25 3139827.58 4981.08

7228 CP-H20 1462900.36 3131328.86 4983.12

7231 CP-ROOSTER 1459209.68 3155188.91 5051.24

53485 CP-OUTFALL 1463761.65 3137570.35 4983.54

56500 CP-RB1 1462217.10 3142011.65 4978.59

56502 CP-CROP 1460533.61 3143531.60 4977.42

59692 CP-OWL 1457962.79 3144678.55 4996.13

59694 CP-HAWK 1458255.39 3149915.30 5021.19

ID
NUMBER PROPERTY OWNER PARCEL NO.

1 K & M COMPANY 8705300015
2 K & M COMPANY 8705000001
3 ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION 8704000002
4 ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION 8704000001
5 FREEDOM STORAGE, LLC 8703000005
6 FAUX CO LLC 8703000019
7 HOUSTON TRANSPORTATION LLC 8703006001
8 WESTERN HERITAGE PROPERTY 8703000014
9 CITY OF THORNTON 8703400927
10 MICHAEL R CLARK 8703000011
11 JOYCE A. SCHNEIDER 8703409001
12 CITIZEN PRINTING CO. 8710000001
13 ROBIN KALTENBERGER 8711200003
14 JACOBS LAND INVESTMENT,  LLC 8711200004
15 ENDOR LLC 8711400001
16 TRAVIS & EMILY REDMOND 8711000002
17 SUE A. WAAG 8712205701
18 SUE ANN WAAG 8712205703
19 DYECREST DAIRY, LLC 8712005001
20 DYECREST DAIRY, LLC 8712000001

CONSTRUCTION ACCESS LOCATIONS

ACCESS ID ROAD DESCRIPTION JURISDICTION

A TIMBERLINE ROAD DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW FORT COLLINS

B MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS
AGREEMENT FORT COLLINS

C MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS
AGREEMENT FORT COLLINS

D I-25 FRONTAGE ROAD (EAST) ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS
AGREEMENT CDOT

E EAST VINE DRIVE DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

F LARIMER COUNTY ROAD NO. 5 DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

G LARIMER COUNTY ROAD NO. 3 DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

H COUNTY LINE ROAD DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

SURVEY CONTROL POINT

00 800' 1600'



11.  Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to 
enter into Executive Session for the following 
purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing 
matters subject to negotiation and strategy 
pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to 
Commercial Meter Overuse Surcharge Policy and 
NEWT III Acquisition and Construction Schedule  

 



North Weld County Water District
OCTOBER 2023 UPDATE

NWCWD.org         |         970-356-3020         |         water@nwcwd.org         |           /nwcwd

NEW RESIDENTIAL METER OVERUSE SURCHARGE POLICY
North Weld County Water District has adopted a new policy to manage water usage more effectively. 
We want to ensure there’s enough water for everyone while protecting the water system. If residential 
customers use an additional 3 acre feet than their allocated amount of water, they’ll be charged an extra 
$22.00 per thousand gallons. This policy encourages responsible water usage and is a step towards 
conserving this vital resource. Let’s all do our part to preserve our environment and water resources! 

Read more about this policy at nwcwd.org/billing-rates/about-rates-charges

ANNUAL WATER QUALITY REPORT & 2022 FINANCIAL AUDIT DRAFT
The Annual Report provides detailed information about the source of the District’s water and the results of 
annual water testing. View it online: nwcwd.org/water-quality/annual-water-quality-report

The 2022 Financial Audit Draft is available at nwcwd.org/annual-audit

JOIN A NWCWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
We welcome public comment, and we’d love to hear from you. 

Our next meeting is October 9 at 8:30 a.m. Meetings are typically held on the second Monday of each  
month at the District Office, located at 32825 County Road 39, Lucerne (unless otherwise noted).

GET SMART WITH TRACKING YOUR WATER USAGE  
Track your water usage (and more) online

Using the WaterSmart customer portal, you can track your water use, set alerts for possible leaks, get water 
saving tips and set customer communication preferences. Enroll to utilize the water-saving features offered 
through the portal.

SET UP YOUR PORTAL IN 3 EASY STEPS
LOG ON: nwcwd.watersmart.com 
REGISTER: Use your account number listed on your water bill and your zip code
PERSONALIZE:  Answer a simple profile survey to provide accurate comparisons to similar households 



  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39    LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56    BUS: 970-356-3020    FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG    EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

 
 

North Weld County Water District  

(970) 356-3020 

water@nwcwd.org 
 
 

Policy Change Related to Residential Meter Overuse Surcharge  
 

Dear Customer, 
 
 

We are writing to inform customers who have high residential meter usage, that on  

April 10, 2023 the North Weld County Water District Board of Directors, through  

Resolution No. 20230410-01 Adopted a Residential Meter Surcharge Policy. 

 

The policy’s intent is to deter water overuse by residential customers and reduce demand  

on the District’s water distribution system. The policy provides the following: 

 

Any customer with a residential water tap that exceeds their water usage allotment  

amount by three (3) acre-feet shall be required to pay an enhanced surcharge in the  

amount of $22.00 per thousand gallons, or as otherwise set forth on the District’s  

then current Fee Schedule, as may be amended from time to time. In general, a  

residential water tap is classified as a water tap with an allocation under four  

(4) acre-feet of water.  

 

The board determined that based on the current cost of water and current cash in Lieu  

Fees, the Fee Schedule will be amended, and a surcharge of $22.00 per thousand gallons  

will be applied for total water usage as stated above based on the current water year 

 from November 2022 to October 2023 and from this year forward. 

 

To find your water allocation, please refer to your regular monthly bill, or contact the District. 

 

 



 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 

32825 CR 39     LUCERNE, CO 80646 
 

P.O. BOX 56     BUS: 970-356-3020     FAX: 970-395-0997 
 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG     EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 
 

 
 

North Weld County Water District Cross-Connection Control Dept. 

(970) 356-3020 

WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

Date: October 9, 2023 
 

URGENT – FINAL NOTICE RE: Backflow Prevention 
 

Dear Customer, 
 

We are writing to remind you that you are required to install and test a reduced pressure zone device on 

your water system by November 1, 2023. This letter is your FINAL NOTICE. Failure to respond to this letter 

or take action toward compliance will result in water service shutoff on November 1, 2023. 
 

If you are receiving this notice, we have not received confirmation of at least one of the following 3 

items listed below. By November 1, 2023, you must contact the District or complete all of the 

following: 
 

1.   Install approved backflow protection 

2.   Have the backflow protection tested by a certified tester 

3.   Have the tester upload the passing test to BSIonline.com 
 

This requirement is the result of a regulation (CDPHE REG. 11.39) issued by the Colorado Department of 

Public Health and Environment to help protect citizens’ health and safety. The CDPHE requires NWCWD 

to shut off water supply to customers that do not comply with the requirement. 
 

The device must be installed within 5 feet of your meter in order to prevent backflow and cross- 

connection contamination. Results verifying that the device is functioning properly must be submitted 

by a licensed tester to BSIOnline.com by November 1, 2023. 
 

Contact the NWCWD office immediately if circumstances prevent you from meeting this deadline, or if 

you believe you have completed installation and testing. 
 

We thank you for your cooperation in helping ensure that our community has safe drinking water. We are 

available to answer questions and offer guidance at any time. Please do not hesitate to contact our office 

at (970) 356-3020 or WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 
It’s Everyone’s Responsibility to Protect Our Water. 


